
 

 

 
At: Aelodau’r  Pwyllgor Trwyddedu Dyddiad: 

 
1 Rhagfyr 2016 
 

 Rhif Union: 
 

01824 712568 

 ebost: democrataidd@sirddinbych.gov.uk 

 
 
Annwyl Gynghorydd 
 
Fe’ch gwahoddir i fynychu cyfarfod y PWYLLGOR TRWYDDEDU, DYDD MERCHER, 7 
RHAGFYR 2016 am 9.30 am yn SIAMBR Y CYNGOR, NEUADD Y SIR, RHUTHUN. 
 
Yn gywir iawn 
 
 
G Williams 
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
RHAN 1 – GWAHODDIR Y WASG A'R CYHOEDD I FOD YN BRESENNOL AR 
GYFER Y RHAN HON O’R CYFARFOD 
 
1 YMDDIHEURIADAU   

 

2 DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT  (Tudalennau 7 - 8) 

 Dylai’r Aelodau ddatgan unrhyw gysylltiad personol neu gysylltiad sy'n 
rhagfarnu mewn unrhyw fater a nodwyd i'w ystyried yn y cyfarfod hwn. 
 

3 MATERION BRYS FEL Y'U CYTUNWYD GAN Y CADEIRYDD   

 Rhybudd o eitemau y dylid, ym marn y Cadeirydd, eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod 
fel materion brys yn unol ag Adran 100B (4) Deddf Llywodraeth Leol, 1972. 
 

4 COFNODION Y CYFARFOD DIWETHAF  (Tudalennau 9 - 14) 

 Derbyn cofnodion y Pwyllgor Trwyddedu a gynhaliwyd ar 22 Medi 2016 (copi 
wedi’i amgáu). 
 

5 POLISI ARFAETHEDIG CERBYDAU HACNI A CHERBYDAU HURIO 
PREIFAT  (Tudalennau 15 - 68) 

Pecyn Dogfen Cyhoeddus



 

 Ystyried adroddiad gan y Pennaeth Cynllunio a Gwarchod y Cyhoedd (copi 
wedi’i amgáu) yn cyflwyno'r Polisi arfaethedig Cerbydau Hacni a Cherbydau 
Hurio Preifat, manyleb ac amodau ar gyfer mabwysiadu sy’n weithredol o 1 
Ebrill 2017. 
 

6 DIWEDDARIAD AR Y WEITHDREFN PWYNTIAU COSB  (Tudalennau 69 - 
72) 

 Ystyried adroddiad gan Bennaeth Cynllunio a Gwarchod y Cyhoedd (copi 
wedi’i amgáu), yn darparu diweddariad blynyddol ar y Weithdrefn Pwyntiau 
Cosb ddiwygiedig. 
 

7 ADOLYGU'R POLISI MASNACHU AR Y STRYD  (Tudalennau 73 - 90) 

 Ystyried adroddiad gan y Pennaeth Cynllunio a Gwarchod y Cyhoedd (copi 
wedi’i amgáu) yn diweddaru aelodau o'r cynnydd mewn perthynas ag 
adolygiad o bolisi presennol masnachu ar y stryd y Cyngor. 
 

8 ADOLYGU'R POLISI SEFYDLIAD RHYW  (Tudalennau 91 - 96) 

 Ystyried adroddiad gan y Pennaeth Cynllunio a Gwarchod y Cyhoedd (copi 
wedi’i amgáu) am gynigion i lunio Polisi Sefydliad Rhyw drafft diwygiedig. 
 

9 RHAGLEN GWAITH I'R DYFODOL Y PWYLLGOR TRWYDDEDU 2017  
(Tudalennau 97 - 100) 

 Ystyried adroddiad gan y Pennaeth Cynllunio a Gwarchod y Cyhoedd (copi 
ynghlwm) yn cyflwyno rhaglen gwaith i’r dyfodol y pwyllgor i’w gymeradwyo. 
 

RHAN 2 - EITEMAU CYFRINACHOL 

 Argymhellir, yn unol ag Adran 100A(4)  Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972, bod y 
Wasg a'r Cyhoedd yn cael eu gwahardd o'r cyfarfod tra bydd yr eitem(au) 
busnes canlynol yn cael eu trafod oherwydd ei bod yn debygol y bydd 
gwybodaeth eithriedig yn cael ei datgelu, fel y'i diffinnir ym mharagraffau 12 a 
14, Rhan 4 Atodlen 12A o’r Ddeddf. 
 

10 CAIS AM DRWYDDED AR GYFER CERBYD HURIO PREIFAT  
(Tudalennau 101 - 110) 

 Ystyried adroddiad cyfrinachol gan y Pennaeth Cynllunio a Gwarchod y 
Cyhoedd (copi wedi’i amgáu) yn gofyn i aelodau benderfynu ar gais ar gyfer 
Trwydded Cerbyd Hurio Preifat. 
 
 

 
AELODAETH 
 
Y Cynghorwyr 
 
Cefyn Williams (Cadeirydd) Huw Williams (Is-Gadeirydd) 



 

  
Joan Butterfield 
Bill Cowie 
Meirick Davies 
Stuart Davies 
Hugh Irving 
 

Barry Mellor 
Merfyn Parry 
Pete Prendergast 
David Simmons 
 

 
COPIAU I’R: 
 
Holl Gynghorwyr er gwybodaeth 
Y Wasg a’r Llyfrgelloedd 
Cynghorau Tref a Chymuned  



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



PWYLLGOR TRWYDDEDU  
    GWEITHDREFN ER MWYN PENDERFYNU AR GEISIADAU AM 

DRWYDDEDAU GYRWYR CERBYDAU HACNI A CHERBYDAU HURIO 
PREIFAT AC ADOLYGU GYRWYR TRWYDDEDIG PRESENNOL 

 

CAM  DISGRIFIAD  

1. 
 

Dylai’r Cadeirydd groesawu a chyflwyno’r ymgeisydd/deilydd y drwydded i 
bawb sy'n bresennol. 

2.  Dylai’r Cyfreithiwr ofyn i'r ymgeisydd/deilydd y drwydded i gadarnhau ei 
fod/bod wedi derbyn yr adroddiad a gweithdrefnau’r Pwyllgor. Os yw’r 
ymgeisydd yn ateb yn gadarnhaol, dylid symud ymlaen at gam 4. 

3. Pe digwydd i’r ymgeisydd/deilydd y drwydded ddweud nad yw wedi derbyn yr 
adroddiad, yna dylid cyfarch y mater yn awr.  Gallai'r Aelodau fod eisiau 
ystyried gohirio’r mater, am gyfnod byr, er mwyn i’r ymgeisydd/deilydd y 
drwydded gael cyfle i ddarllen yr adroddiad.  

4. Dylai Pennaeth Cynllunio a Diogelu’r Cyhoedd (neu gynrychiolydd ar ei ran) 
gyflwyno’r cais/adolygiad yn fras 

5.  Gofynnir i’r ymgeisydd/deilydd y drwydded gyflwyno ei achos/hachos 
 
Gall yr ymgeisydd/deilydd y drwydded alw unrhyw dyst y mae’n eu dewis i 
gefnogi ei gais/chais, a dylid rhoi rhybudd ymlaen llaw i’r Swyddogion 
Trwyddedu ynglŷn â hynny. 

6. Gall Aelodau’r Pwyllgor holi’r ymgeisydd/deilydd y drwydded ac /neu ei dystion 
ei thystion. 

7. Gwahoddir swyddogion technegol i gyflwyno unrhyw ganfyddiadau 
(Gorfodaeth Trwyddedu/Cymunedol, Tîm Cyswllt Cyntaf (y Gwasanaethau 
Cymdeithasol), Cludiant Ysgolion.) 

8.  Gall Aelodau’r Pwyllgor ac yna’r ymgeisydd/deilydd y drwydded ofyn 
cwestiynau i’r swyddogion technegol  

9. Gwahoddir yr ymgeisydd/deilydd y drwydded i gyflwyno sylwadau i gloi, os 
ydynt yn dymuno gwneud hynny. 

10. Gofynnir i’r canlynol adael y cyfarfod tra trafodir y cais/yr adolygiad gan yr 
Aelodau - yr ymgeisydd/deilydd y drwydded, pob trydydd parti, Pennaeth 
Cynllunio a Diogelu'r Cyhoedd, swyddogion technegol. 
 
DS yr unig rai a ddylai fod yn weddill yw – Aelodau’r Pwyllgor, cyfieithydd, 
cynghorydd cyfreithiol y pwyllgor a’r sawl sy’n cymryd y cofnodion. 

Tudalen 5

Agenda Annex



11. Dylai aelodau’r pwyllgor roi ystyriaeth i’r cais/adolygiad gan roi cyfrif am y 
dystiolaeth a glywyd. 

12. Pe bai’n angenrheidiol i Aelodau’r Pwyllgor alw unrhyw barti yn eu holau i’w 
holi neu i ofyn iddynt ddarparu rhagor o wybodaeth neu egluro rhywbeth, 
gwahoddir pawb a fydd wedi ymneilltuo o’r cyfarfod yn eu holau.  Wedi i’r 
cwestiwn (cwestiynau) gael eu hateb gofynnir i bob trydydd parti ymneilltuo 
unwaith eto er mwyn i’r Aelodau gael ystyried y dystiolaeth i gyd. 

13. Pan fo’r Aelodau wedi dod i benderfyniad, gelwir yr holl bartïon yn eu holau a 
chaiff yr ymgeisydd/deilydd y drwydded wybod beth yw penderfyniad yr 
Aelodau gan y Cadeirydd. 

14. Bydd y Cadeirydd yn rhoi gwybod i’r ymgeisydd/deilydd y drwydded o’r 
penderfyniad y daethpwyd iddo. Bydd hyn yn cynnwys unrhyw amodau neu 
gosbau sydd wedi eu gosod.  Os oes angen, dylai Cyfreithiwr y Cyngor 
gyflwyno eglurhad pellach ynglŷn â’r penderfyniad a’i oblygiadau i’r 
ymgeisydd/deilydd y drwydded. 

15. Os mai’r penderfyniad yw gwrthod neu os oes penderfyniad i atal neu ddirymu, 
dylai Cyfreithiwr y Cyngor roi gwybod i’r ymgeisydd/deilydd y drwydded am yr 
hawl i apelio i Lys Ynadon (bydd y llythyr penderfyniad hefyd yn cynnwys y 
manylion hyn). 

16. Ar gyfer gyrrwr sydd eisoes wedi ei drwyddedu (a bod y drwydded wedi ei rhoi 
gan Sir Ddinbych), a bod penderfyniad y Pwyllgor yn ymwneud ag atal neu 
ddirymu’r drwydded bresennol, gall yr Aelodau wneud hynny naill ai o dan: 
  
1. Adran 61 (2A) Deddf Llywodraeth Leol (Darpariaethau Amrywiol) 1976.   
2. Adran 61 (2B) Deddf Llywodraeth Leol (Darpariaethau Amrywiol) 1976. 
Daw’r penderfyniad hwn i rym YN SYTH ac ni ellir ei ddefnyddio ond pan fo’r 
sail dros atal/dirymu yn fater sy’n ymwneud â diogelwch y cyhoedd. 
 
Bydd y Cyfreithiwr yn esbonio goblygiadau’r penderfyniad wrth ddeilydd y 
drwydded.   

17. Caiff yr ymgeisydd/deilydd y drwydded ei hysbysu o'r penderfyniad yn 
ysgrifenedig cyn gynted ag y bo’r ymarferol bosibl. 

18. Caiff yr ymgeisydd/deilydd y drwydded ei wahodd/gwahodd i drafod unrhyw 
fater y mae’n ansicr yn ei gylch gyda Swyddogion Trwyddedu yn dilyn y 
Pwyllgor. 

 
 

Tudalen 6



 
 
 
DEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL 2000 

 

 

 
Cod Ymddygiad Aelodau 
 

DATGELU A CHOFRESTRU BUDDIANNAU 
 
  

Rwyf i, 
(enw) 

  

  

*Aelod /Aelod cyfetholedig o 
(*dileuer un) 

Cyngor Sir Ddinbych   

 
 

 

YN CADARNHAU fy mod wedi datgan buddiant *personol / personol a 
sy’n rhagfarnu nas datgelwyd eisoes yn ôl darpariaeth Rhan III cod 
ymddygiad y Cyngor Sir i Aelodau am y canlynol:- 
(*dileuer un) 

Dyddiad Datgelu:   

   

Pwyllgor (nodwch):   

   

Agenda eitem   

   

Pwnc:   

   

Natur y Buddiant: 

(Gweler y nodyn isod)* 

 

 

 

 
 

 

   

Llofnod    

   

Dyddiad   

 

Noder: Rhowch ddigon o fanylion os gwelwch yn dda, e.e. 'Fi yw perchennog y tir sy’n gyfagos i'r cais 
ar gyfer caniatâd cynllunio a wnaed gan Mr Jones', neu 'Mae fy ngŵr / ngwraig yn un o weithwyr y 
cwmni sydd wedi gwneud cais am gymorth ariannol'. 

Tudalen 7

Eitem Agenda 2



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 

PWYLLGOR TRWYDDEDU 
 
Cofnodion cyfarfod o’r Pwyllgor Trwyddedu a gynhaliwyd yn Siambr y Cyngor, Ty Russell, 
Ffordd Churton, Y Rhyl, Dydd Iau, 22 Medi 2016 am 9.30 am. 
 

YN BRESENNOL 
 

Y Cynghorwyr Joan Butterfield, Bill Cowie, Meirick Davies, Hugh Irving, Barry Mellor, 
Merfyn Parry, Pete Prendergast, David Simmons, Cefyn Williams (Cadeirydd) a 
Huw Williams (Is-gadeirydd) 
 

HEFYD YN BRESENNOL 

 
 Pen Gyfreithiwr (AL), Uwch Swyddog Gorfodaeth Diogelwch Cymunedol (TWE), 
Swyddog Trwyddedu (JT), Swyddog Gorfodaeth Diogelwch Cymunedol (HB) a 
Gweinyddwr y Pwyllgor (KEJ) 
 

 
1 YMDDIHEURIADAU  

 
Y Cynghorydd Stuart Davies. 
 

2 DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD  
 
Ni ddatganwyd unrhyw gysylltiad personol na chysylltiad sy'n rhagfarnu. 
 

3 MATERION BRYS FEL Y'U CYTUNWYD GAN Y CADEIRYDD  
 
Penderfynodd y Cadeirydd ei fwriad i gynnwys y mater canlynol i’w drafod 
oherwydd bod angen rhoi sylw brys iddo:- 
 
TACSIS YN HYGYRCH I GADEIRIAU OLWYN 
 
Tynnodd y Cynghorydd Joan Butterfield sylw at achos diweddar lle’r oedd nifer o 
dacsis hygyrch i gadeiriau olwyn yn gweithredu yn ardal y Rhyl, wedi gwrthod 
derbyn archeb i gludo defnyddiwr mewn cadair olwyn.  Cyfeiriodd at drwyddedau 
cerbydau hacni ychwanegol a gyhoeddwyd yn benodol ar gyfer cerbydau hygyrch i 
gadeiriau olwyn er mwyn darparu’r gwasanaeth hwnnw, a mynegodd bryderon 
difrifol bod tacsis sy’n hysbysebu’r gwasanaeth hwnnw yn gwrthod ei roi.  Roedd y 
swyddogion yn ymwybodol bod nifer o dacsis wedi cael eu hysbysebu fel cludwyr 
cadeiriau olwyn arbenigol a chytunwyd i edrych i mewn i'r mater ymhellach. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD bod swyddogion yn ymchwilio a yw tacsis sy’n hygyrch i 
gadeiriau olwyn sy’n gweithredu yn yr ardal yn darparu gwasanaeth tacsi addas i 
ddefnyddwyr cadeiriau olwyn, ac adrodd yn ôl i'r aelodau ar hynny. 
 

4 COFNODION Y CYFARFOD DIWETHAF  
 
Cyflwynwyd cofnodion y Pwyllgor Trwyddedu a gynhaliwyd ar 8 Mehefin 2016 a’r 
Pwyllgor Trwyddedu Arbennig a gynhaliwyd ar 23 Mehefin 2016. 

Tudalen 9

Eitem Agenda 4



 
PENDERFYNWYD derbyn a chymeradwyo cofnodion y cyfarfodydd a gynhaliwyd 
ar 8 Mehefin 2016 a 23 Mehefin 2016 fel cofnod cywir.  
 

5 ADOLYGU'R POLISI MASNACHU AR Y STRYD  
 
Cyflwynodd y Swyddog Trwyddedu (JT) adroddiad gan y Pennaeth Cynllunio a 
Gwarchod y Cyhoedd (a ddosbarthwyd yn flaenorol), yn hysbysu aelodau o 
gynnydd o ran yr adolygiad o'r polisi masnachu ar y stryd cyfredol yn Sir Ddinbych. 
 
Rhoddodd Swyddogion rywfaint o gefndir i weithrediad cyfredol y gyfundrefn 
masnachu ar y stryd a oedd yn cael ei hadolygu, er mwyn mynd i'r afael ag 
anawsterau yn y system a rheoleiddio a chefnogi masnachu ar y stryd yn well yn y 
sir.  Roedd y diffiniad o fasnachu ar y stryd wedi cael ei nodi yn yr adroddiad 
ynghyd ag eithriadau cyfreithiol ar gyfer mathau penodol o fasnachu, a'r rhai a 
reoleiddir gan ddulliau neu awdurdodau eraill.  Gofynnwyd am farn yr Aelodau ar 
ddrafft cychwynnol (yn amgaeedig gyda’r adroddiad) ac roedd swyddogion yn 
bwriadu parhau i weithio ar y drafft, gan ystyried unrhyw ofynion deddfwriaethol 
newydd, cyn cynhyrchu strategaeth ddrafft derfynol ar gyfer ymgynghoriad 
cyhoeddus ac ystyriaeth wedi hynny gan y pwyllgor. 
 
Roedd trafodaeth ar y materion polisi yn cynnwys y canlynol - 
 

 cafodd y cynnig i gyflwyno system o "ganiatâd bloc dros dro" fel y manylir ym 
mharagraff 4.3.3 o'r adroddiad ei gefnogi'n llawn gan y Cynghorydd Barry 
Mellor, er mwyn ei gwneud yn haws i drefnwyr digwyddiadau cymunedol ac 
annog presenoldeb 

 cyfeiriwyd at y strydoedd gwaharddedig ar gyfer dibenion masnachu ar y stryd 
yn y Rhyl a Phrestatyn, a chadarnhaodd swyddogion y byddai rhan o'r adolygiad 
yn cynnwys p'un a fyddai unrhyw newid i'r system gyfredol o strydoedd â 
chaniatâd a rhai gwaharddedig yn briodol, gan gymryd i ystyriaeth y gwahanol 
ardaloedd o fewn y sir er mwyn caniatáu mwy o hyblygrwydd o fewn y cynllun 

 nodwyd bod y Cynghorydd Bill Cowie wedi ei enwebu fel cyswllt y pwyllgor ar 
ddatblygiad y polisi drafft a chadarnhaodd swyddogion y byddent yn croesawu 
ei gyfraniad wrth ddatblygu'r drafft terfynol ymhellach - canmolodd y 
Cynghorydd Cowie y gwaith hyd yma ar y drafft cychwynnol ac fe gefnogodd 
waith parhaus y swyddogion ar yr adolygiad fel y nodwyd yn yr adroddiad. 

 
Holodd yr Aelodau a oedd rheoleiddio gweithgareddau penodol sy'n peri pryder yn 
rhan o gylch gwaith masnachu ar y stryd ai peidio, gan gynnwys trwyddedau parcio 
a roddwyd i gontractwyr sy'n gweithio o fewn canol trefi (a oedd wedi achosi 
rhywfaint o anghytuno yng Nghanol Tref y Rhyl) a masnachwyr twyllodrus a oedd 
yn gweithredu o gerbydau, yn enwedig mewn ardaloedd gwledig.  Dywedodd y 
swyddogion bod y ddau fater yn disgyn y tu allan i'r gyfundrefn masnachu ar y 
stryd.  Roedd trwyddedau parcio yn cael eu hawdurdodi gan Adain Gwaith Stryd 
Priffyrdd a gofynnodd y Cadeirydd i'r aelodau drafod unrhyw bryderon yn hynny o 
beth yn uniongyrchol gyda'r Pennaeth Priffyrdd.  O ran masnachwyr twyllodrus, 
dylai aelodau gyfeirio eu pryderon at yr Adain Safonau Masnach ar gyfer 
ymchwiliad. 
 

Tudalen 10



PENDERFYNWYD bod y Pwyllgor Trwyddedu yn - 
 

(a)  awdurdodi'r swyddogion i barhau â'r gwaith ar y Polisi Masnachu ar y Stryd 
drafft, gan ystyried unrhyw ddeddfwriaeth berthnasol sydd ar ddod a allai 
effeithio ar reoleiddio masnachu ar y stryd fel y'i drafftiwyd gan Lywodraeth y 
DU, ac 

 
(b)  awdurdodi swyddogion i ymgynghori ar bolisi drafft, a chymryd i ystyriaeth 

unrhyw sylwadau a ddaw i law, a llunio drafft terfynol i aelodau ei ystyried yn 
eu cyfarfod ym mis Mawrth 2017. 

 
6 RHAGLEN GWAITH I’R DYFODOL Y PWYLLGOR TRWYDDEDU  

 
Cyflwynwyd adroddiad gan bennaeth Cynllunio a Gwarchod y Cyhoedd (a 
ddosbarthwyd ymlaen llaw) ynglŷn â rhaglen gwaith i’r dyfodol y Pwyllgor 
Trwyddedu ar gyfer 2016. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD cymeradwyo rhaglen waith y Pwyllgor Trwyddedu. 
 

Gwahardd y wasg a'r cyhoedd 
 
PENDERFYNWYD dan ddarpariaethau Adran 100A Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972, 
gwahardd y Wasg a’r Cyhoedd o’r cyfarfod ar gyfer yr eitemau canlynol ar y sail y byddai 
gwybodaeth eithriedig yn debygol o gael ei datgelu fel y’i diffinnir ym Mharagraffau 12 ac 
13 Rhan 4 Atodlen 12A y Ddeddf. 
 
7 ADOLYGIAD O DRWYDDED I YRRU CERBYDAU HACNI A CHERBYDAU 

HURIO PREIFAT - GYRRWR RHIF  15/1594/TXJDR  
 
Cyflwynwyd adroddiad cyfrinachol gan y Pennaeth Cynllunio a Gwarchod y 
Cyhoedd (a ddosbarthwyd yn flaenorol) ynglŷn ag – 
 
(i) addasrwydd Gyrrwr Rhif 15/1594/TXJDR i ddal trwydded i yrru cerbydau hacni 

a cherbydau hurio preifat yn dilyn cronni 20 o bwyntiau cosb o dan gynllun 
pwyntiau cosb y Cyngor am gyflwyno cerbyd trwyddedig i’w brofi mewn cyflwr 
anniogel a pheryglus; 
 

(ii) bod manylion ynghylch y diffygion a nodwyd yn dilyn cyflwyno’r cerbyd ar 
gyfer Prawf Cydymffurfio/MOT Mai 2016 a chyhoeddi 20 pwynt cosb wedi eu 
cynnwys yn yr adroddiad, ynghyd â datganiadau tyst cysylltiedig a 
dogfennaeth; 

 
(iii) y Gyrrwr wedi apelio’r penderfyniad i ddyfarnu'r 20 pwynt cosb ar y sail, ei fod 

wedi cyflwyno’r cerbyd ar gyfer y prawf o flaen llaw mewn garej wahanol, a 
bod y gwaith trwsio angenrheidiol wedi cael ei wneud yn unol â methiant y 
prawf a hysbysiadau cynghori (nid oedd y ddwy eitem a nodwyd fel 'peryglus' 
yn y prawf dilynol ym Mai wedi cael eu nodi yn ystod y prawf cyntaf) – y 
Gyrrwr wedi methu â darparu tystiolaeth ddogfennol o'i hawliadau ac ar ôl 
ymchwiliadau, fe wrthododd y swyddogion yr apêl, a 

 

Tudalen 11



(iv) bod y Gyrrwr wedi cael ei wahodd i fod yn bresennol yn y cyfarfod i gefnogi 
adolygiad o’i drwydded, er mwyn gallu ateb cwestiynau’r aelodau ynglŷn â 
hynny. 

 
Roedd y Gyrrwr yn bresennol yn y cyfarfod i gefnogi ei chais a chadarnhaodd ei fod 
wedi derbyn yr adroddiad a threfnau’r pwyllgor. 
 
Amlinellodd y Swyddog Gorfodi Trwyddedu'r achos fel y manylir yn yr adroddiad. 
 
Derbyniodd y Gyrrwr y ffeithiau fel y nodwyd yn yr adroddiad, ar wahân i'r methiant i 
gredu ei fod wedi cyflwyno’r cerbyd i'r Orsaf Brofi ymlaen llaw.  Dadleuodd ei fod 
wedi cymryd pob cam rhesymol i sicrhau addasrwydd y cerbyd ac fe fanylodd ar y 
digwyddiadau a arweiniodd at Fethu’r Prawf Cydymffurfio/MOT a oedd yn cynnwys 
(1) adnewyddu'r cerbyd mewn siop rhannau ceir; (2) cyflwyno’r cerbyd mewn 
Gorsaf Brofi lle cafodd cyn-archwiliad ei wneud a nododd bump o ddiffygion; (3) 
cyflwyno'r cerbyd i garej wahanol a drwsiodd y diffygion a nodwyd, a (4) cyflwyniad 
terfynol o’r cerbyd ar gyfer Prawf Cydymffurfio/MOT angenrheidiol a arweiniodd at 
fethu’r prawf.  Darparodd y Gyrrwr dystiolaeth o daliadau a wnaed i bob un o'r tair 
garej ar wahân a nodwyd yn ei gyflwyniad, er nad oedd tystiolaeth o'r gwaith a 
wnaed a’r diffygion a nodwyd wedi cael eu rhoi.  Rhoddwyd tystiolaeth ddogfennol 
ar ffurf datganiad tyst yn cadarnhau casglu’r cerbyd o'r Orsaf Brofi a’i gyflwyno i 
garej ar wahân ar gyfer gwaith trwsio.  Yn olaf, cyflwynwyd llythyr gan Frocer 
Yswiriant y Gyrrwr i gefnogi ei achos.  Wrth gloi ei gyflwyniad, dywedodd y Gyrrwr 
ei fod wedi cymryd pob cam rhesymol i sicrhau cydymffurfiaeth ac wedi ymddiried 
mewn gweithwyr proffesiynol tair garej ar wahân a oedd wedi methu adnabod y 
diffygion fel y rhestrir ar yr hysbysiad methiant.  Rhoddodd sicrwydd bod camau 
wedi’u cymryd ar unwaith i drwsio’r diffygion unwaith y cawsant eu nodi ac nad 
oedd y cerbyd wedi bod yn berygl i'r cyhoedd, gan nad oedd wedi bod yn 
gwasanaethu yn ystod y cyfnod yn arwain at fethu’r prawf.  Yn olaf, fe roddodd y 
Gyrrwr rhywfaint o wybodaeth gyffredinol am reoli ei fusnes a chynnal a chadw ei 
gerbydau trwyddedig heb ddigwyddiad blaenorol. 
 
Cymerodd yr Aelodau’r cyfle i godi cwestiynau gyda'r Gyrrwr er mwyn egluro trefn y 
digwyddiadau ymhellach a'r camau yr oedd wedi’u cymryd mewn ymateb i 
amgylchiadau penodol i sicrhau bod y cerbyd mewn cyflwr diogel ac addas i'r ffordd 
fawr, ynghyd â chwestiynau ynghylch rheolaeth gyffredinol ei fusnes a threfn cynnal 
a chadw cerbydau.  Ymatebodd y Gyrrwr i gwestiynau hefyd ynglŷn â'r dystiolaeth 
ddogfennol a gyflwynodd o blaid ei achos a’r rhesymeg y tu ôl i'r diffyg tystiolaeth 
ategol wrth gofnodi gwaith archwilio a thrwsio cerbydau, fel y nodwyd yn ei 
gyflwyniad i'r pwyllgor. 
 
Yn ei ddatganiad terfynol, dywedodd y Gyrrwr ei fod wedi bod yn onest yn ei 
gyflwyniadau a thynnodd sylw'r aelodau at y dystiolaeth a gyflwynwyd, gan 
gynghori y gallai ddarparu datganiadau tystion pellach os oes angen.  Roedd yn 
credu ei fod wedi ymddwyn yn gyfrifol yn yr achos hwn ac wedi cael ei siomi gan 
weithwyr proffesiynol eraill. 
 
Ar y pwynt hwn torrodd y pwyllgor i ystyried yr achos a - 
 

Tudalen 12



PHENDERFYNWYD nad oedd yr honiadau a wnaed yn erbyn Gyrrwr Rhif  
15/1594/TXJDR wedi eu profi ac felly does dim angen gweithredu pellach.  
 
Dyma oedd y rhesymau am benderfyniad y Pwyllgor Trwyddedu –  
 
Roedd yr Aelodau wedi ystyried yr holl dystiolaeth a gyflwynwyd yn ofalus, a'r 
cyflwyniadau gan y Gyrrwr a'i ymateb i gwestiynau.  Ystyriodd y pwyllgor fod y 
dystiolaeth yn yr achos hwn yn awgrymu bod y Gyrrwr wedi dilyn cyngor gweithwyr 
proffesiynol eraill, ei fod wedi mynd â’i gerbyd am wiriad cyn-archwiliad, ac roedd 
wedi rhoi manylion ynghylch y gwaith a oedd ei angen i garej, lle gwnaethpwyd y 
gwaith trwsio.  Roedd y Gyrrwr wedi talu am y gwasanaethau hynny.  Yna cafodd y 
cerbyd ei gyflwyno ar gyfer y Prawf Cydymffurfio / MOT, ac wedi methu.  Yna 
cafodd y cerbyd waith trwsio pellach lle pasiodd y Prawf Cydymffurfio/MOT wedi 
hynny. 
 
Ar sail y dystiolaeth a gyflwynwyd, fe dderbyniodd y pwyllgor fod y Gyrrwr wedi 
cymryd camau rhesymol i sicrhau addasrwydd ei gerbyd yn yr achos hwn, a’i 
ystyried yn berson addas a phriodol i ddal trwydded gyrrwr cerbyd hacni/cerbyd 
hurio preifat.  Argymhellodd yr Aelodau hefyd fod yr 20 pwynt cosb a roddwyd i'r 
Gyrrwr yn cael eu tynnu ymaith ar unwaith. 
 
Cafodd penderfyniad y pwyllgor a'r rhesymau felly eu cyfleu i'r Gyrrwr. 
 
Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 11.10 a.m. 
 
 

Tudalen 13



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



ADRODDIAD I'R: Pwyllgor Trwyddedu 

DYDDIAD: 7 Rhagfyr 2016 
 

SWYDDOG ARWEINIOL: Pennaeth Cynllunio a Gwarchod y 
Cyhoedd  

SWYDDOG CYSWLLT: Uwch Swyddog Technegol 
(Trwyddedu) 
trwyddedu@sirddinbych.gov.uk  

01824 706433 
 

PWNC: Polisi Arfaethedig Cerbydau Hacni a 
Cherbydau Hurio Preifat   

 

1. PWRPAS YR ADRODDIAD 

1.1 
 
 
 
1.2 

Rhoi gwybod i’r Pwyllgor Trwyddedu am ganlyniadau’r ail broses 
ymgynghori ynglŷn â Pholisi Arfaethedig Cerbydau Hacni a Cherbydau 
Hurio Preifat.  
 

 I Aelodau ystyried cymeradwyo drafft Polisi Arfaethedig Cerbydau Hacni 
a Cherbydau Hurio Preifat, manylebau y cerbydau  a’r amodau yn 
Atodiad 1. 

 
2. 
 
2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3. 
 
3.1 
 
 
4. 
 
4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 

CRYNODEB GWEITHREDOL 
 
 Yn ystod y Pwyllgor Trwyddedu ym mis Mehefin eleni, cymeradwywyd, 
gan yr Aelodau,  yr hawl i Swyddogion ddiwygio’r  polisi drafft i 
adlewyrchu'r newidiadau o ganlyniad i’r broses ymgynghori gyntaf gyda 
masnachwyr, y cyhoedd sy’n teithio a chyrff cynrychioliadol eraill ac i 
ymgynghori ymhellach â phartïon sydd â diddordeb a chofnodi sylwadau 
a dderbyniwyd yn fersiwn derfynol y polisi  i’w cyflwyno mewn cyfarfod yn 
y dyfodol. 
 
 PŴER I WNEUD Y PENDERFYNIAD 
 
Deddf Llywodraeth Leol (Darpariaethau Amrywiol) 1976 a Deddf 
Cyfrifoldebau Heddluoedd Trefol 1847. 
 
GWYBODAETH GEFNDIROL 
 
I atgoffa Aelodau, mae adolygiad llawn o Bolisi presennol Cerbydau 
Hacni a Cherbydau Hurio Preifat wedi ei gwblhau, (gan gynnwys 
manyleb ac amodau).  Roedd hyn yn cynnwys dwy sesiwn gweithdy lle 
bu Aelodau Etholedig, Gwasanaethau Fflyd a'r diwydiant tacsis yn 
cymryd rhan, ac yna rhoddwyd cyflwyniad gan y Gwasanaethau Fflyd i’r 
Pwyllgor Trwyddedu.  
 
O ganlyniad i'r adolygiad, ac yn y cyfarfod Pwyllgor Trwyddedu ym mis 
Rhagfyr 2015, cytunodd yr Aelodau ar bolisi drafft ar gyfer Cerbydau 
Hacni a Cherbydau Hurio Preifat, manylebau cerbydau ac amodau ar 

Tudalen 15

Eitem Agenda 5



 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.5 
 
 
 
 
4.6 
 
 
 
 
 
5. 
 
 
5.1 
 
 
 
5.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

gyfer ymgynghori â phartïon â diddordeb. Cynhaliwyd cyfnod ymgynghori 
cychwynnol rhwng mis Ionawr a mis Mawrth eleni.   
 
 Mewn cyfarfod pellach ym mis Mehefin eleni, cyflwynodd swyddogion yr 
ymatebion a dderbyniwyd o ganlyniad i’r broses ymgynghori i’r Aelodau, 
a phenderfynwyd cynnal proses ymgynghori pellach rhwng mis Medi a 
mis Tachwedd eleni. Cafwyd cyfanswm o 2 o ymatebion yn ystod yr ail 
broses ymgynghori.  Gweler crynodeb o'r ymatebion hyn yn Atodiad 2. 
 
Mae Swyddogion wedi diwygio’r polisi arfaethedig i adlewyrchu’r 
ymatebion a dderbyniwyd, lle bo’n briodol, maent hefyd wedi cymryd y 
cyfle i gynnwys meysydd ychwanegol nad oeddent yn fersiynau 
gwreiddiol y drafft h.y. Safleoedd/ Gorfodaeth/ Prisiau. Nid yw’r meysydd 
penodol hyn yn cael unrhyw effaith ar bartïon â diddordeb gan eu bod o 
bosib eisoes yn bodoli mewn polisïau a gweithdrefnau eraill. Pwrpas eu 
cynnwys yn y polisi drafft hwn yw er mwyn eglurder a hwylustod ar gyfer 
dalwyr trwyddedau ac ymgeiswyr. 
 
Nid yw rhai o’r atodiadau a gyfeiriwyd atynt yn y polisi arfaethedig wedi 
cael eu hatodi gan eu bod yn ymwneud â pholisïau sy’n bodoli’n barod ac 
felly nid oes angen eu hystyried ar hyn o bryd.  Yn ogystal, nid yw rhai o’r 
atodiadau wedi’u rhifo neu o bosib y bydd angen eu hail-rifo gan y 
byddant yn cael eu gosod i mewn i’r polisi yn y lleoliad priodol. 
 
Yn ychwanegol i’r Polisi Arfaethedig Cerbydau Hacni a Cherbydau Hurio 
Preifat, Manyleb ac Amodau, mae Aelodau eisoes wedi cymeradwyo i 
fabwysiadu Is-Ddeddfau Enghreifftiol yr Adran Drafnidiaeth sy’n cyd-fynd 
â Pholisi Cerbydau Hacni a Cherbydau Hurio Preifat. Rhaid disgwyl am 
gadarnhad ar yr Is-Ddeddfau Enghreifftiol gan yr Ysgrifennydd Gwladol 
cyn y gellir eu rhoi ar waith.   
 
ARGYMHELLIAD 
 
Bod Aelodau yn mabwysiadu Polisi Cerbydau Hacni a Cherbydau Hurio 
Preifat, Manylebau ac Amodau yn Atodiad 1, sy'n dod i rym ar 1 Ebrill 
2017. 
 
Awdurdodi Pennaeth Cynllunio a Gwarchod y Cyhoedd gan ymgynghori 
â Chadeirydd Trwyddedu i wneud cywiriadau gweinyddol bychain i’r polisi 
lle bo angen, yn dilyn adolygiad bob tair blynedd neu’n gynt os yn briodol. 

 

Tudalen 16



Page 1 of 23 

 

 

 

 

 

Planning and Public Protection Service 
 

 

Name of Policy : 

PRIVATE HIRE AND HACKNEY CARRIAGE VEHICLE  
POLICY, VEHICLE SPECIFICATION AND CONDITIONS 
OF LICENCE 
 

Author / Custodian: Nicky Jones 

Date agreed and implemented:  

Agreed by:  

Frequency of Review: 3 years 

Review date:  

Equality Impact Assessment completed: 
(date)   

 

Member involvement (if any) Licensing Committee 

Internal or Public Domain: Public 

Head of Service Approval: 
(signature & date) 

 

 
 

VERSION CONTROL: 

Reference: Status: Authorised by: Date: 

V01 Draft Head of Service  

    

Tudalen 17



Page 2 of 23 

1. PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE POLICY 
 

LIMITATION OF NUMBERS 

 
1.1 No powers exist for Licensing Authorities to limit the number of Private Hire 

Vehicles that they licence. 
 

SPECIFICATIONS AND CONDITIONS 

 
1.2 Local Authorities have a wide range of discretion over the types of vehicles that 

they can licence as Private Hire vehicles.  Government guidance suggests that 
local licensing authorities should adopt the principle of specifying as many 
different types of vehicles as possible and encouraged to make use of the “type 
approval” rules within any specifications they determine.  Accordingly, the 
Council will require European Whole Vehicle Type Approval for all new licensed 
vehicles. 
 

1.3 The Authority shall impose such conditions, as it considers reasonably 
necessary, on Private Hire vehicle licences.  Theses vehicles provide a service to 
the public, so it is appropriate to set a criteria for the standard of the external 
and internal condition of the vehicle, provided that these are not unreasonably 
onerous. 
 

1.4 Appendix 1(a) sets out the specification and minimum standards in respect of 
Private Hire vehicles. 
 

1.5 Vehicles must be capable of carrying as least four and not more than eight 
passengers, provided that there is compliance with the specification applicable 
to such vehicles.  

 

ACCESSIBILITY 

 
1.6 The Authority fully supports the view of the Equality and Human Rights 

Commission that, 
“making successful journeys is critical to the social inclusion of disabled people.  
Without the ability to travel, disabled people are denied access to life 
opportunities.  Their access to education, shopping, employment, healthcare, as 
well as social and family life is significantly improved when journeys become 
accessible” 
 

1.7 For this reason, the Authority considers it important that people with 
disabilities have access to all forms of public transportation and encourages 
Private Hire Operators and drivers to use vehicles that will assist those 
passengers with mobility difficulties. 

 
1.8        Licensed Taxi drivers have a duty under Disability Discrimination Act 2005 to 

carry guide, hearing and other prescribed assistance dogs in their vehicles 
without additional charge.  Drivers who have a medical condition that is 
aggravated by exposure to dogs may apply to Denbighshire County Council for 

Tudalen 18



Page 3 of 23 

an exemption from the duty on medical grounds.  Any other driver who fails to 
comply with this duty could be prosecuted through a Magistrates’ court and 
would be liable to a fine and could be deemed not to be a fit and proper person 
to hold a Hackney Carriage or Private Hire Driver’s licence. Further guidance on 
this matter can be found on the Department for Transport web-site 
https://www.gov.uk/transport-disabled/taxis-and-minicabs 

 

 MAXIMUM AGE OF VEHICLES 

 
1.9 The Authority shall consider how far its Policy can and should support any local 

environmental initiative and future initiatives, such as setting vehicle emissions 
standards or promoting cleaner fuels, as well as ensuring a modern standard of 
its licensed vehicles. 

 
1.10 All vehicles licensed under a new application must be up to a maximum of 5 

years old from the date of first registration and, if compliant with the 
requirements for licence, shall therefore be granted a renewal of a vehicle 
licence up to the age of 12 years only from the date of first registration, 
whereupon the licensed vehicle must be replaced with one of a maximum age 
of up to 5 years from the date of first registration. This also applies to any 
vehicle that is transferred/replaced or that has been involved in a road traffic 
collision. 

 
1.11 All existing licensed vehicles will have “grandfather rights” for 5 years after the 

implementation of this policy, by which time all existing licensed vehicles must 
be able to comply with 1.10 above eg all licensed vehicles aged 12 years or 
over, from the date of first registration, must have been replaced with one of a 
maximum age of up to 5 years from the date of first registration. This will only 
be relevant to licensed vehicles that have had a continuous licence.  Vehicles 
that are not renewed before the expiry date of the existing licence will be 
treated as a new vehicle and 1.10 above will apply.  

 

 VEHICLE TESTING 

 
1.12 Prior to the granting of a licence, each vehicle shall be examined and tested at a 

designated testing station, approved by the Authority. 
   
1.13 Private Hire vehicles are used for reward purposes and as such are subject to 

much higher annual mileages and more arduous driving than normal private 
vehicles.  Therefore, in the interests of passenger and other road user’s safety, 
a more stringent maintenance and testing regime is required.  This Policy 
Statement considers the MOT inspection Manual for Car and Light Commercial 
Vehicle Testing issued by DVSA as a basic inspection standard for Private Hire 
vehicles.  However, in addition to the DVSA standards, it is a requirement for all 
vehicles to conform to the Council’s Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle 
Inspection Standards.  Therefore, when assessing the mechanical condition of a 
vehicle it is possible that a MOT advisory note could fail the Council’s testing 
standards. 

  

Tudalen 19



Page 4 of 23 

1.14 The purpose of the Private Hire vehicle test is to confirm vehicles meet the 
more stringent standards set out in this Policy Statement.  Vehicles must be 
submitted fully prepared for the test.  It is not intended that the test be used in 
lieu of a regular preventative maintenance programme. It is an offence under 
the Vehicle Construction and Use Regulations 1986 to use an un-roadworthy 
vehicle on the public highway.  Private Hire drivers/operators who fail to 
maintain their licensed vehicles in a safe and roadworthy condition may have 
their licence(s) suspended, or revoked by the Council. 

 
1.15 The following diagram (fig 1) summaries the testing regime for Private Hire 

Vehicle: 
 

AGE OF VEHICLE (from 
date of first 
registration) 

NUMBER OF 
MOT/COMPLIANCE TESTS 

TEST VENUE 

ALL NEW TO FLEET 
VEHICLES (irrespective 
of age) 

2 x MOT and 
Compliance Tests 
at 6 monthly 
intervals 
 

Initial MOT and 
Compliance to take 
place at County’s  Fleet 
Services 
 
All further Compliances 
(up to the age of 5 
years) to take place at 
any Designated Testing 
Station 

Licensed Vehicles under 
5 years old 

2 x MOT and 
Compliance Tests 
at  6 month 
intervals 

 

At any Designated 
Testing Station 

Licensed Vehicles  5 
years and over and up 
to 12 years old 

2 x MOT and Compliance 
Tests  at 6 monthly 
intervals 

1 at Fleet Services and 1 
at any Designated 
Testing Station 

Fig 1 

 
1.16 Vehicles that are presented for their MOT and Compliance tests in a condition 

that would result in a failure, may be subject to any applicable re-test fee, to be 
determined by the Designated Testing Station.   

 
1.17 The inspection regime for vehicles has not been designed so as to create 

difficulties for the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire trades, but to promote 
vehicle and road safety.  The Council therefore considers the inspection 
requirements to be justified by the risks it aims to address. 

 
1.18 Any authorised Officer of the Council or any Police Constable has the power at 

all reasonable times to inspect and test for the purpose of ascertaining its 
fitness, any Private Hire vehicle licensed by Denbighshire.  If the Officer feels 
the licensed vehicle is unfit for use as a Private Hire vehicle, or the licensed 

Tudalen 20



Page 5 of 23 

vehicle is in breach with taxi legislation or the Council’s Licensing Policy and 
Conditions, the vehicle licence may be suspended, revoked or not renewed. 

 

 SIGNAGE /ADVERTISING/LIVERY 

 
1.19 It is important that the public should be able to identify and understand the 

difference between a Hackney Carriage and a Private Hire vehicle.  Private Hire 
vehicles shall not display roof-mounted signs of any description. 

 
1.20 Vehicle identification plates are a key feature in helping to identify vehicles that 

are properly licensed.  All licensed vehicles, except those Private Hire vehicles 
that have been granted exemption by the Authority shall display plates on the 
rear of the vehicle (refer to Section 13 of Appendix 1(a)). 

 
1.21 Private Hire vehicles shall display door signs, issued by the Council and fitted as 

set out in the conditions of licence. 
 
1.22 Licensed Vehicles shall not be allowed to display any written or other material 

on any window with the exception of those permitted by the conditions of 
licence. 

 
1.23 Private Hire vehicles shall not be allowed to display or advertise written or 

other material on its bodywork. 
 

 SECURITY/CCTV 
 

1.24 The Private Hire trade provide a valuable public service particularly late at night 
when other forms of public transport are not available.  Security for drivers and 
passengers is of paramount importance.  CCTV can be a valuable deterrent as 
well as protection for the driver from unjustified complaints. 

 
1.25 It is not proposed that such measures such as CCTV should be required, as part 

of the licensing regime, as it is considered that they are best left to the 
judgement of the owners and drivers themselves.   

 
1.26     In allowing the installation and use of CCTV, the Authority recognises that such 

systems can be used to prevent and detect crime, reduce the fear of crime and 
enhance the safety of taxi and private hire vehicle drivers, as well as their 
passengers. However, this policy also seeks to ensure that the installation and 
operation of CCTV systems do not compromise the safety of either drivers or 
passengers or unreasonably interfere with the privacy of members of the 
public. 

 
1.27      For the purposes of this policy, a CCTV system will include any electronic 

recording device attached to the inside of a taxi or private hire vehicle having 
the technical capability to capture and retain visual images from inside or 
external to the vehicle. 

 

Tudalen 21



Page 6 of 23 

1.28     This policy does not place a mandatory requirement on the licensed operators 
of taxis and private hire vehicles to install CCTV systems in their vehicles. Any 
CCTV system to be fitted in a taxi or private hire vehicle must, as a minimum, 
meet the requirements of this policy. Only CCTV systems meeting these 
requirements can be installed into licensed taxis and private hire vehicles. 

 
1.29     Where an operator wishes to install and use a CCTV system, it will be a 

condition of the taxi or private hire vehicle licence that the requirements of this 
policy are complied with.  

 
1.30      THE DATA CONTROLLER 
 
1.30.1    The Information Commissioner defines a “data controller” as the body which 

has legal responsibility under the Data Protection Act 1998 for all matters 
concerning the use of personal data. For the purpose of the installation and 
operation of a CCTV system in taxis and private hire vehicles, the “data 
controller” will be the holder of the taxi or private hire vehicle licence and not 
the driver. The licence holder, as data controller, will therefore be responsible 
for ensuring compliance with the requirements of this policy and with all 
relevant data protection legislation, including the Data Protection Act 1998. The 
data controller is legally responsible for the use of all images including breaches 
of legislation. 

 
1.31     THIRD PARTY DATA PROCESSOR 
 
1.31.1   Where a service provider is used for the remote storage of CCTV data they will 

act as a ‘data processor’. A data processor, in relation to personal data, means 
any person (other than an employee of the data controller) who processes data 
on behalf of the data controller, in response to specific instructions. The data 
controller retains full responsibility for the actions of the data processor. There 
must be a formal written contract between the data controller and the data 
processor. The contract must contain provisions covering security 
arrangements, retention/deletion instructions, access requests and termination 
arrangements. A copy of the contract must be provided to an authorised officer 
of the Licensing Section, or to the Police, on reasonable request 

 
1.32     It will be the driver/proprietor‘s responsibility to comply with all aspects of the 

law regarding such surveillance equipment.  CCTV requirements and conditions 
can be found at Appendix  1(c) . 

 

  APPLICATION PROCEDURES 
 

1.33 The procedure for applying for a Private Hire vehicle licence is not prescribed in 
legislation. Applicants will be expected to complete the relevant application 
form as provided by the Licensing Section and furnish the relevant supporting 
documents.   

 
 
 

Tudalen 22



Page 7 of 23 

 CONSIDERATION OF APPLICATIONS 

 
1.34 The Council shall consider all applications on their own merits once it is 

satisfied that the appropriate criteria have been met and the application form 
and supporting documents are complete. 

 

 GRANT AND RENEWAL OF LICENCE 
 
1.35     Hackney carriage and private hire vehicle licences will be granted for 12 

months. Vehicle licences can be renewed up to one calendar month before 
expiry with no loss of licence benefit. 

 
1.36     The Council will only accept complete applications comprising of all the 

necessary information. 
 
1.37     The licence fees payable are subject to review and any increase or reduction 

will be published as required by legislation. 
 
1.38     Application forms, appropriate fees, and supporting documentation, shall be 

produced at the Licensing Section in person, by post or in some circumstances, 
electronically. 

 
1.39     In respect of Hackney Carriage vehicles, licenses are granted on the proviso that 

the vehicle concerned will work predominantly within the County- hackney 
 
1.40     The responsibility to ensure that a vehicle is licensed is that of the proprietor, 

driver and in the case of private hire, the operator, as all may be guilty of an 
offence should an unlicensed vehicle be used. 

 
1.41 Licences will not be renewed after expiry.  If a licence holder fails to renew 

their licence on or before the respective expiry date, the licence will lapse and 
become invalid.  Licence holders should note that if they allow their licence to 
expire, they will be required to make a new application in full.  This will 
obviously incur a potentially significant time delay, and dependant upon the 
age of the existing licensed vehicle, it may require a change in vehicle to meet 
the age requirements set out in Section 1.10.  The cost implications of failing to 
renew a licence could therefore be significant, and licence holders are 
therefore strongly advised to ensure that they renew their licence before the 
expiry date.  If the licence holder is aware of any reason that they may not be 
able to renew their licence before the expiry date, they must inform the 
Licensing Section immediately. 

 

 STRETCHED LIMOUSINES 

 
1.42 Stretched limousines are elongated saloon cars that have been increasingly 

used for mainstream Private Hire work.  Their general use includes all Private 
Hire work plus special occasions such as birthday parties for all ages, stag and 
hen parties. 

 

Tudalen 23



Page 8 of 23 

1.43 Most limousines are imported for commercial purposes and are therefore 
required to take an Individual Vehicle Approval (IVA) test.  The IVA test verifies 
that the converted vehicle is built to a certain safety and environmental 
standards.  When presented for IVA the vehicle is produced with a declaration 
that it will never carry more than 8 passengers.  The importer must inform any 
person who may use it of this restriction.   

 
1.44 Applications to licence stretched limousines as Private Hire vehicles will be 

treated on their own merits.  It is however, proposed that imported stretched 
limousine type vehicles: 

 be granted an exemption from the requirement under the conditions 
of  licence for Private Hire vehicles to be right hand drive 

 be granted exemption to display the Private Hire vehicles plates 

 be approved  as a Private Hire vehicle subject to the additional 
conditions detailed in Appendix  1(d) 

 

 CONTRACT VEHICLES 

 
1.45 The Road Safety Act 2006 requires vehicles used for a contract with an 

organisation or company for carrying passengers for Hire or reward under a 
contract to be licensed as Private Hire vehicles.  As a general guide this shall 
include executive hire, chauffeur service, airport travel, stretch limousines and 
novelty vehicles. 

 

 FUNERAL AND WEDDING VEHICLES 

 
1.46 In accordance with legislation, funeral and wedding vehicles do not need to be 

licensed whilst it is being used in connection with a wedding or funeral. 
 

 TRAILERS 

 
1.47 Licensed Private Hire Vehicles are permitted to tow a trailer. However, Licensed 

Drivers currently exempt from the need to pass the DVLA driver trailer 
entitlement will require relevant training before towing a trailer. Relevant 
specifications and conditions for the trailer can be found at Appendix 1(e). 

 

 COLLISIONS/INCIDENTS 

 
1.48 A licence will be suspended if, upon the reporting an incident to the Council, in 

a licensed vehicle, as required by the licensing conditions, the Council is of the 
opinion that the damage caused materially effects the safety, performance or 
appearance of the licensed vehicle or the comfort or convenience of 
passengers carried therein. 

 

 PLATE EXEMPTION 

 
1.49 The displaying of the external identification plates on a licensed Private Hire 

Vehicle and the wearing of a driver’s identification badge is important in terms 

Tudalen 24



Page 9 of 23 

of public safety and reassurance.  They indicate to the travelling public that the 
vehicle and driver are approved and therefore would have been subject to a 
number of important checks prior to the licence being granted. 

 
1.50 However, there are a small number of occasions when the requirement to 

display external identification plates may have commercial and customer safety 
implications ie. safety for dignitaries and famous people. 
 

1.51 It is not intended that all Private Hire vehicles licensed by the Council should be 
exempt from the Council’s requirements to display an external identification 
plate, however the Council recognises that there may be circumstances when it 
would be appropriate for vehicles operating the type of service to be 
considered suitable for such an exemption. To that end an exemption will only 
be granted where the applicant is able to satisfy the council that: 

 There is no public safety risk 

 There is a legitimate business or service requirement 

 The vehicle is suitable for the purposes outlined by the applicant. 
 
 1.52 Each application for exemption will be treated on its own merits for 

consideration at Licensing Committee. 
 
DISCIPLINARY AND ENFORCEMENT MEASURES 

 
1.52     Legislation installing a licensing regime and the conditions of licence designed 

to protect public safety are of no value unless they are correctly enforced by 
the Council. For this reason, the Council has dedicated taxi enforcement 
Officers. 

 
1.53     The Council will take appropriate disciplinary action upon receipt of evidence 

that an offence has been committed by a hackney carriage or private hire 
driver, a private hire operator, private hire or hackney carriage vehicle 
proprietor or in relation to a hackney carriage, private hire vehicle or operator’s 
licence. 

 
1.54     Offences may be committed either contrary to the legislation enforced by the 

Council, the conditions imposed on licences granted by the Council, the 
adopted byelaws regulating hackney carriage proprietors and drivers, or this 
Policy. 

 
1.55     Drivers, operators and proprietors of vehicles who have committed offences 

under legislation outside of that applicable to taxis will also be investigated in 
order to establish whether they are still fit and proper to hold a licence. 

 
1.56     The Council will undertake targeted enforcement operations (including out of 

normal office hours) based on intelligence received as well as for compliance 
purposes. 

 
1.57     The Council will investigate complaints received in respect of licensed and 

unlicensed vehicles; operators and drivers in accordance with the Police & 

Tudalen 25



Page 10 of 23 

Criminal Evidence Act 1984 and the Planning and Public Protection   
Enforcement Policy. 

 
1.58     The Council will undertake regular compliance checks of the records of 

Operators, drivers and vehicle proprietors and may request any documentation 
from those holding licences with the Council in order to ensure compliance 
with the legislative provisions, conditions of licence, byelaws and this Policy. 

 
1.59     The Council will share information with other agencies in respect of potential 

illegal activities and enter into joint enforcement operations with other 
agencies and authorities. This may include taking enforcement action in respect 
of drivers and vehicles licensed by other Authorities where agreements and 
necessary delegations are in place.  

 
1.60     The Council has a Planning and Public Protection Enforcement Policy, available 

on the Council website or provided on request, regulating how enforcement 
measures are taken by the Council. This states that any action shall be 
proportional, reasonable, transparent and appropriately directed.  Details on 
enforcement action taken will be shared with other appropriate agencies and 
other Council services. 

 
Disciplinary Action 
 
1.61     There is a range of disciplinary action which the Council may take following the   

outcome of an investigation. This includes prosecution, revocation, refusal or 
an informal disciplinary sanction. 

 
1.62     Where there is no evidence of wrong doing no further enforcement action will 

be taken. However, an advisory letter may still be appropriate. Where there is 
evidence of wrong doing the Council will take action. 

 
1.63     Prosecutions will be taken where it is in the public interest. However, there are 

some instances where the revocation or suspension of a licence is a more 
effective and immediate remedy than prosecution.  Licence holders successfully 
prosecuted by the Council for offences that put public safety at risk will have 
their licence revoked. 

 
1.64     The Council will revoke, suspend or refuse to renew a licence where the licence 

holder has committed offences that put public safety at risk or for persistent 
non-compliance with the relevant legislation or licence conditions. In addition, 
a licence holder who fails to sufficiently safeguard the public, especially 
children and vulnerable adults, may have their licence suspended or revoked. 

 
1.65     Minor offences which do not put the public at risk or do not call into question 

the fitness of the licence holder will be dealt with informally under the Council’s 
penalty point warning scheme. The frequency or nature of minor offences may 
be such that the penalty point warning scheme is not consider appropriate and 
another sanction is necessary, such as suspension or revocation. 

 

Tudalen 26



Page 11 of 23 

1.66 Action taken in respect of vehicle licences, such as suspension or revocation, 
will be dealt with by Officers guided by the requirements of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provision) Act 1976 (including sections 60 & 68), 
Town Police Clauses Act 1847 (including section 50), Planning and Public 
Protection Enforcement Policy, and this Policy. 

 
1.67 Action taken in respect of drivers or operators that fall outside of the penalty 

point warning scheme will be dealt with by Officers unless referred to the 
Licensing Committee. 

 
1.68  One of the functions of the Licensing Committee is to consider the impact of 

transgressions of the law on the fitness of an individual. 
 
PENALTY POINTS SCHEME 
 
1.69 Whilst the operation of a successful hackney carriage and private hire vehicle 

trade is important to the economic well-being of the County, it is equally 
important that the service provided by the trade is properly regulated in order 
to instil confidence in the travelling public who wish to use those services. 

 
1.70     The Council has a responsibility to ensure that all drivers, owners and operators 

of vehicles adhere to minimum standards and to apply this in a consistent and 
transparent manner. The standards concerned are defined by legislation, 
licence conditions, codes of conduct or byelaws adopted by the Council and in 
this policy. Together they identify what is required of the trade and help to 
ensure that a consistent approach is taken. 

 
1.71     The Council believes that an effective means of applying conditions at a local 

level is through a penalty point warning scheme. This acts as a first step in 
ensuring compliance with conditions, and serves as an “early warning” system 
to drivers, vehicle proprietors, and operators who see fit to ignore their 
responsibilities or fail to meet the requirements of their licence. 

 
1.72     Points are accumulated on a sliding scale dependent upon the type of breach 

that has occurred. These penalty points then remain “live” for a relevant period 
on the drivers, proprietors or operators record from the date they are imposed. 
Where a driver, proprietor or operator accumulates a specified number of 
points within the relevant period they will be requested to attend a disciplinary 
hearing before the Licensing Committee. The Committee can either suspend or 
revoke the licence. 

 
  1.73      In some circumstances, specifically those relating to public safety, where the 

maximum 20 points is given then the Head of Planning and Public Protection 
may revoke a licence with immediate effect. 

 
1.74 It is believed that a warning based penalty point’s scheme does assist the trade 

in maintaining standards but it does not compromise the Council’s ability to 
take other enforcement action for breaches of statute or licence conditions 
should an offence warrant such action. 

Tudalen 27



Page 12 of 23 

1.75   The penalty point scheme is further detailed at Appendix  .  
 
 FARES 
 
1.76 The Council is not able to set fares for Private Hire vehicles. 
 
1.77 Private Hire Operators that use licensed vehicles fitted with a fare meter must 

provide the Council with a current table of fares.  This table must also be 
displayed in each Private Hire vehicle so that is is easily visible to all hirers. 

 
1.78 Private Hire Operators may adopt the Council’s tariff of fares for Hackney 

Carriage vehicles as their tariff of fares. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 28



Page 13 of 23 

2. HACKNEY CARRIAGE VEHICLES 
 

LIMITATION OF NUMBERS 
 
2.1 Many local Licensing Authorities, including Denbighshire, do not impose any 

quantitative restrictions for Hackney Carriages and the Department for 
Transport (DfT) regards this as best practice. Should an Authority elect to 
impose restrictions on numbers, the DfT guidance states that such a decision 
should be re-considered frequently, taking into account whether the 
restrictions should continue.   
 

2.2 Where quantitative restrictions are imposed, vehicle licence plates can 
command a premium.  This tends to suggest that there are people who want to 
enter the market and provide a service to the public but who are being 
prevented from doing so by the limitations of numbers.  It may be difficult to 
justify a quantitative control in such circumstances. 
 

2.3 If the Local Authority takes the view that a quantity restriction can be justified 
in principle, the DfT Guidance advises that the level at which the limit should be 
set be addressed by means of a survey, which would involve hefty costs 
 

2.4 The Council has, at this time, decided not to set a limit on the number of 
Hackney Carriage Vehicles. 

 

 SPECIFICATIONS AND CONDITIONS 

 
2.5 Local Authorities have a wide range of discretion over the types of vehicles that 

they can licence as Hackney Carriage vehicles.  Government guidance suggests 
that local licensing authorities should adopt the principle of specifying as many 
different types of vehicles as possible and encouraged to make use of the “type 
approval” rules within any specifications they determine.   

 
2.6 Hackney Carriages, will generally be licensed for the carriage of 4 passengers, 

but applications in relation to larger vehicles that can accommodate up to eight 
passengers will be considered provided that they comply with the 
manufacturer’s specifications applicable to such vehicles. 

 
2.7 The Authority shall impose such conditions, as it considers reasonably 

necessary, on Hackney Carriage vehicle licences.  These vehicles provide a 
service to the public, so it is appropriate to set a criteria for the standard of the 
external and internal condition of the vehicle, provided that these are not 
unreasonably onerous. 
 

2.8 Appendix 1(b) sets out the specification and minimum standards in respect of 
Hackney Carriage vehicles. 

 
 
 

 

Tudalen 29



Page 14 of 23 

 ACCESSIBILITY 
 
2.9 The Authority fully supports the view of the Equality and Human Rights 

Commission that, 
“making successful journeys is critical to the social inclusion of disabled people.  
Without the ability to travel, disabled people are denied access to life 
opportunities.  Their access to education, shopping, employment, healthcare, as 
well as social and family life is significantly improved when journeys become 
accessible” 
 

2.10 For this reason, the Authority considers it important that people with 
disabilities have access to all forms of public transportation.  In addition to the 
general conditions, accessibility for disabled people including, but not limited 
to, people who need to travel in a wheelchair, is an important consideration. 

 
2.11 Different accessibility considerations should apply to Hackney Carriages as 

opposed to Private Hire vehicles, as Hackney Carriages can be hired 
immediately in the street or at a Hackney Carriage Rank by the customer 
dealing directly with the driver, whereas Private Hire vehicles can only be used 
by pre-booking, usually through an Operator.  On the basis that those with 
disabilities must have equal access to transport services, it is considered to be 
particularly important for a disabled person to be able to hire a Hackney 
Carriage vehicle on the spot with the minimum of delay or inconvenience and 
having accessible Hackney Carriages available helps make that possible. 

 
2.12 Licensed Taxi drivers have a duty under the Disability Discrimination Act 2005 

to carry guide, hearing and other prescribed assistance dogs in their taxis 
without additional charge.  Drivers who have a medical condition that is 
aggravated by exposure to dogs may apply to Denbighshire County Council for 
an exemption from the duty on medical grounds.  Any other driver who fails to 
comply with this duty could be prosecuted through a Magistrates’ court and 
would be liable to a fine and could be deemed not to be a fit and proper person 
to hold a Hackney Carriage or Private Hire Driver’s licence. Further guidance on 
this matter can be found on the Department for Transport web-site 
https://www.gov.uk/transport-disabled/taxis-and-minicabs. 
 

 MAXIMUM AGE OF VEHICLES 
 

2.13 The Authority shall consider how far its Policy can and should support any local 
environmental initiative and future initiatives, such as setting vehicle emissions 
standards or promoting cleaner fuels, as well as ensuring a modern standard of 
its licensed vehicles. 

 
2.14 All vehicles licensed under a new application must be up to a maximum of 5 

years old from the date of first registration and, if compliant with the 
requirements for licence, shall therefore be granted a renewal of a vehicle 
licence up to the age of 10 years only, whereupon the vehicle must be replaced 
with one of up to a maximum age of 5 years old from the date of first 

Tudalen 30



Page 15 of 23 

registration. This also applies to any licensed vehicle that is 
transferred/replaced or been involved in a road traffic collision. 

 
2.15 All existing licensed vehicles will have “grandfather rights” for 5 years after the 

implementation of this policy, by which time all existing licensed vehicles must 
be able to comply with 2.14 above eg all licensed vehicles aged up to 10 years 
from the date of first registration, or over must have been replaced with one of 
a maximum age of 5 years from the date of first registration. This will only be 
relevant to vehicles that have had a continuous licence.  Licensed vehicles that 
are not renewed before the expiry date of the existing licence will be treated as 
a new vehicle and 2.14 above will apply. 

 

 VEHICLE TESTING 

 
2.16 Prior to the granting of a licence, each vehicle shall be examined and tested at a 

designated testing station, approved by the Authority. 
   
2.17 Hackney Carriage vehicles are used for hire and reward purposes and as such 

are subject to much higher annual mileages and more arduous driving than 
normal private vehicles.  Therefore, in the interests of passenger and other 
road user’s safety, a more stringent maintenance and testing regime is 
required.  This Policy Statement considers the MOT inspection Manual for Car 
and Light Commercial Vehicle Testing issued by DVSA as a basic inspection 
standard for Hackney Carriage vehicles.  However, in addition to the DVSA 
standards, it is a requirement for all vehicles to conform to the Council’s 
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Inspection Guidance.  Therefore, 
when assessing the mechanical condition of a vehicle, it is possible that a MOT 
advisory note could fail the Council testing station standards. 

 
2.18 The purpose of the Hackney Carriage vehicle test is to confirm vehicles meet 

the more stringent standards set out in this Policy Statement.  Vehicles must be 
submitted fully prepared for the test.  It is not intended that the test be used in 
lieu of a regular preventative maintenance programme. It is an offence under 
the Vehicle Construction and Use Regulations 1986 to use an un-roadworthy 
vehicle on the public highway.  Hackney Carriage drivers/proprietors who fail to 
maintain their vehicles in a safe and roadworthy condition may have their 
licence(s) suspended, or revoked by the Council. 

 
2.19 The following diagram (fig 1) summaries the testing regime for Hackney 

Carriage vehicles: 
 

AGE OF VEHICLE (from 
date of first 
registration) 

NUMBER OF 
MOT/COMPLIANCE TESTS 

TEST VENUE 

ALL NEW TO FLEET 
VEHICLES (irrespective 
of age) 

2 x MOT to include 
Compliance Tests 
at 6 monthly 
intervals 
 

Initial MOT and 
Compliance to take 
place at County’s  Fleet 
Services 
 

Tudalen 31



Page 16 of 23 

All further Compliances 
(up to the age of 5 
years from the date of 
first registration) to 
take place at any 
Designated Testing 
Station 

Licensed Vehicles under 
5 years old  

2x MOT and Compliance 
Tests  at 6 monthly 
intervals 
 

At any Designated 
Testing Station 

Licensed Vehicles  5 
years and over and up 
to 10 years old  

2 x MOT and Compliance 
Tests at 6 monthly 
intervals 

1 at Fleet Services and 1 
at any Designated 
Testing Station 

Fig 1 

 
2.20 Vehicles that are presented for their MOT and Compliance tests in a condition 

that would result in a failure, will be subject to any applicable re-test fee, to be 
determined by the Designated Testing Station.  

 
2.21 The inspection regime for vehicles has not been designed so as to create 

difficulties for the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire trades, but to promote 
vehicle and road safety.  The Council therefore considers the inspection 
requirements to be justified by the risks it aims to address. 

 
2.22 Any authorised Officer of the Council or any Police Constable has the power at 

all reasonable times to inspect and test for the purpose of ascertaining its 
fitness, any Hackney Carriage vehicle licensed by Denbighshire.  If the Officer 
feels the licensed vehicle is unfit for use as a Hackney Carriage, or the licensed 
vehicle is in breach with taxi legislation or the Council’s Licensing Policy and 
Conditions, the vehicle licence may be suspended, revoked or not renewed.   

 
 SIGNAGE/ADVERTISING/LIVERY 

 
2.23 It is important that the public should be able to identify and understand the 

difference between a Hackney Carriage and a Private Hire vehicle. 
 
2.24 Vehicle identification plates are a key feature in helping to identify vehicles that 

are properly licensed.  All licensed vehicles shall display one plate at the front 
and one on the rear of the vehicle  

 
2.25 A Hackney Carriage licensed by the Council must carry an illuminated roof-

mounted sign.  The roof sign must state “Taxi/Tacsi” and must be illuminated 
when plying for hire. 

 
2.26 Details of any signs or advertising requested to be place on a Hackney Carriage 

vehicle shall be submitted to the Licensing Section for due consideration as to 
content.  If the advertising is not approved by the Officer then the advertising 
request will be referred to the Licensing Committee for its consideration. 

Tudalen 32



Page 17 of 23 

 
  

SECURITY/CCTV 
 

2.27 The Hackney Carriage trade provide a valuable public service particularly late at 
night when other forms of public transport are not available.  Security for 
drivers and passengers is of paramount importance.  CCTV can be a valuable 
deterrent as well as protection for the driver from unjustified complaints. 

 
2.28 It is not proposed that such measures such as CCTV should be required, as part 

of the licensing regime, as it is considered that they are best left to the 
judgement of the owners and drivers themselves.   

 
2.29      In allowing the installation and use of CCTV, the Authority recognises that such 

systems can be used to prevent and detect crime, reduce the fear of crime and 
enhance the safety of taxi and private hire vehicle drivers, as well as their 
passengers. However, this policy also seeks to ensure that the installation and 
operation of CCTV systems do not compromise the safety of either drivers or 
passengers or unreasonably interfere with the privacy of members of the 
public. 

 
2.30     For the purposes of this policy, a CCTV system will include any electronic  

recording device attached to the inside of a taxi or private hire vehicle having 
the technical capability to capture and retain visual images from inside or 
external to the vehicle. 

 
2.31 This policy does not place a mandatory requirement on the licensed operators         

of taxis and private hire vehicles to install CCTV systems in their vehicles. Any 
CCTV system to be fitted in a taxi or private hire vehicle must, as a minimum, 
meet the requirements of this policy. Only CCTV systems meeting these 
requirements can be installed into licensed taxis and private hire vehicles. 
 

2.32    Where an operator wishes to install and use a CCTV system, it will be a condition    
of the taxi or private hire vehicle licence that the requirements of this policy are 
complied with.  

 
2.33     The Data Controller 
 
2.33.1 The Information Commissioner defines a “data controller” as the body which 

has legal responsibility under the Data Protection Act 1998 for all matters 
concerning the use of personal data. For the purpose of the installation and 
operation of a CCTV system in taxis and private hire vehicles, the “data 
controller” will be the holder of the taxi or private hire vehicle licence and not 
the driver. The licence holder, as data controller, will therefore be responsible 
for ensuring compliance with the requirements of this policy and with all 
relevant data protection legislation, including the Data Protection Act 1998. The 
data controller is legally responsible for the use of all images including breaches 
of legislation. 
 

Tudalen 33



Page 18 of 23 

 
 

2.34    Third Party Data Processor 
 
2.34.1  Where a service provider is used for the remote storage of CCTV data they will 

act as a ‘data processor’. A data processor, in relation to personal data, means 
any person (other than an employee of the data controller) who processes data 
on behalf of the data controller, in response to specific instructions. The data 
controller retains full responsibility for the actions of the data processor. There 
must be a formal written contract between the data controller and the data 
processor. The contract must contain provisions covering security 
arrangements, retention/deletion instructions, access requests and termination 
arrangements. A copy of the contract must be provided to an authorised officer 
of the Licensing Authority, or to the Police, on reasonable request 
 

2.35     It will be the driver/proprietor‘s responsibility to comply with all aspects of the   
law regarding such surveillance equipment.  CCTV requirements and conditions 
can be found at Appendix 1(c). 

 
TAXI RANKS 
 
2.36 A full list of Hackney Carriage ranks, their exact positioning on each street, the 

times they are in use and the maximum occupancy of each is available from the 
Licensing Section. 

 
FARES 
 
2.37 The Hackney Carriage Table of Fares (“the tariff”) is set by the Council and set 

the maximum fare that can be charged by Hackney Carriage drivers for 
journeys. 

 
2.38 The fares tariff is enforceable as a byelaw and it is an offence for any person to 

charge more than the metered fare. 
 
2.39 The Council will review Hackney carriage fare scales from time to time in liaison 

with the Hackney Carriage Proprietors.   
 
2.40 Hackney Carriage Proprietors may request, in writing, a review of the Council’s 

fare scales, at any reasonable time. 
 
2.41     A table of authorised maximum fares will be provided to each Hackney Carriage 

Proprietor, which must then be displayed in each vehicle so that it is easily 
visible to all hirers. 

 
DISCIPLINARY AND ENFORCEMENT MEASURES 

 
2.42     Legislation installing a licensing regime and the conditions of licence designed 

to protect public safety are of no value unless they are correctly enforced by 

Tudalen 34



Page 19 of 23 

the Council. For this reason, the Council has dedicated taxi enforcement 
Officers. 

 
2.43     The Council will take appropriate disciplinary action upon receipt of evidence 

that an offence has been committed by a hackney carriage or private hire 
driver, a private hire operator, private hire or hackney carriage vehicle 
proprietor or in relation to a hackney carriage, private hire vehicle or operator’s 
licence. 

 
2.44     Offences may be committed either contrary to the legislation enforced by the 

Council, the conditions imposed on licences granted by the Council, the 
adopted byelaws regulating hackney carriage proprietors and drivers, or this 
Policy. 

 
2.45     Drivers, operators and proprietors of vehicles who have committed offences 

under legislation outside of that applicable to taxis will also be investigated in 
order to establish whether they are still fit and proper to hold a licence. 

 
2.46     The Council will undertake targeted enforcement operations (including out of 

normal office hours) based on intelligence received as well as for compliance 
purposes. 

 
2.47     The Council will investigate complaints received in respect of licensed and 

unlicensed vehicles; operators and drivers in accordance with the Police & 
Criminal Evidence Act 1984 and the Planning and Public Protection   
Enforcement Policy. 

 
2.48     The Council will undertake regular compliance checks of the records of 

Operators, drivers and vehicle proprietors and may request any documentation 
from those holding licences with the Council in order to ensure compliance 
with the legislative provisions, conditions of licence, byelaws and this Policy. 

 
2.49     The Council will share information with other agencies in respect of potential 

illegal activities and enter into joint enforcement operations with other 
agencies and authorities. This may include taking enforcement action in respect 
of drivers and vehicles licensed by other Authorities where agreements and 
necessary delegations are in place.  

 
2.50     The Council has a Planning and Public Protection Enforcement Policy, available 

on the Council website or provided on request, regulating how enforcement 
measures are taken by the Council. This states that any action shall be 
proportional, reasonable, transparent and appropriately directed.  Details on 
enforcement action taken will be shared with other appropriate agencies and 
other Council services. 

 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 35



Page 20 of 23 

DISCIPLINARY ACTION 
 
2.51     There is a range of disciplinary action which the Council may take following the   

outcome of an investigation. This includes prosecution, revocation, refusal or 
an informal disciplinary sanction. 

 
2.52     Where there is no evidence of wrong doing no further enforcement action will 

be taken. However, an advisory letter may still be appropriate. Where there is 
evidence of wrong doing the Council will take action. 

 
2.53     Prosecutions will be taken where it is in the public interest. However, there are 

some instances where the revocation or suspension of a licence is a more 
effective and immediate remedy than prosecution.  Licence holders successfully 
prosecuted by the Council for offences that put public safety at risk will have 
their licence revoked. 

 
2.54     The Council will revoke, suspend or refuse to renew a licence where the licence 

holder has committed offences that put public safety at risk or for persistent 
non-compliance with the relevant legislation or licence conditions. In addition, 
a licence holder who fails to sufficiently safeguard the public, especially 
children and vulnerable adults, may have their licence suspended or revoked. 

 
2.55     Minor offences which do not put the public at risk or do not call into question 

the fitness of the licence holder will be dealt with informally under the Council’s 
penalty point warning scheme. The frequency or nature of minor offences may 
be such that the penalty point warning scheme is not consider appropriate and 
another sanction is necessary, such as suspension or revocation. 

 
2.56 Action taken in respect of vehicle licences, such as suspension or revocation, 

will be dealt with by Officers guided by the requirements of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provision) Act 1976 (including sections 60 & 68), 
Town Police Clauses Act 1847 (including section 50), Planning and Public 
Protection Enforcement Policy, and this Policy. 

 
2.57 Action taken in respect of drivers or operators that fall outside of the penalty 

point warning scheme will be dealt with by Officers unless referred to the 
Licensing Committee. 

 
2.58  One of the functions of the Licensing Committee is to consider the impact of 

transgressions of the law on the fitness of an individual. 
 

PENALTY POINTS SCHEME 
 
2.59 Whilst the operation of a successful hackney carriage and private hire vehicle 

trade is important to the economic well-being of the County, it is equally 
important that the service provided by the trade is properly regulated in order 
to instil confidence in the travelling public who wish to use those services. 

 

Tudalen 36



Page 21 of 23 

2.60     The Council has a responsibility to ensure that all drivers, owners and operators 
of vehicles adhere to minimum standards and to apply this in a consistent and 
transparent manner. The standards concerned are defined by legislation, 
licence conditions, codes of conduct or byelaws adopted by the Council and in 
this policy. Together they identify what is required of the trade and help to 
ensure that a consistent approach is taken. 

 
2.61     The Council believes that an effective means of applying conditions at a local 

level is through a penalty point warning scheme. This acts as a first step in 
ensuring compliance with conditions, and serves as an “early warning” system 
to drivers, vehicle proprietors, and operators who see fit to ignore their 
responsibilities or fail to meet the requirements of their licence. 

 
2.62     Points are accumulated on a sliding scale dependent upon the type of breach 

that has occurred. These penalty points then remain “live” for a relevant period 
on the drivers, proprietors or operators record from the date they are imposed. 
Where a driver, proprietor or operator accumulates a specified number of 
points within the relevant period they will be requested to attend a disciplinary 
hearing before the Licensing Committee. The Committee can either suspend or 
revoke the licence. 

 
  2.63    In some circumstances, specifically those relating to public safety, where the 

maximum 20 points is given then the Head of Planning and Public Protection 
may revoke a licence with immediate effect. 

 
 2.64 It is believed that a warning based penalty point’s scheme does assist the trade 

in maintaining standards but it does not compromise the Council’s ability to 
take other enforcement action for breaches of statute or licence conditions 
should an offence warrant such action. 

 
2.65   The penalty point scheme is further detailed at Appendix    . 
  

APPLICATION PROCEDURES 
 

2.44 The procedure for applying for a Private Hire vehicle licence is not prescribed in 
legislation. Applicants will be expected to complete the relevant application 
form as provided by the Licensing Section and furnish the relevant supporting 
documents. 

 

 CONSIDERATION OF APPLICATIONS 
 

2.45 The Council shall consider all applications on their own merits once it is 
satisfied that the appropriate criteria have been met and the application form 
and supporting documents are complete. 

 
  
 
 
 

Tudalen 37



Page 22 of 23 

RENEWAL OF LICENCE 
 
2.46 Hackney carriage vehicle licences will be granted for 12 months. Vehicle 

licences can be renewed up to one calendar month before expiry with no loss 
of licence benefit. 

 
2.47 The Council will only accept complete applications comprising of all the 

necessary information. 
 
2.48 The licence fees payable are subject to review and any increase or reduction 

will be published as required by legislation. 
 
2.49 Application forms, appropriate fees, and supporting documentation, shall be 

produced at the Licensing Section in person, by post or in some circumstances, 
electronically  

 
2.50 In respect of Hackney Carriage vehicles, licenses are granted on the proviso that 

the vehicle concerned will work predominantly within the County. Please refer 
to the County’s Intended Use Policy at Appendix 

 
2.51 The responsibility to ensure that a vehicle is licensed is that of the proprietor, 

driver and in the case of private hire, the operator, as all may be guilty of an 
offence should an unlicensed vehicle be used. 

 
2.52 Application forms, appropriate fees, and supporting documentation, shall be 

produced at the Licensing Section.  It is the licence holder’s responsibility to 
ensure that licences are renewed prior to their expiry. 

 
2.53 Licences will not be renewed after expiry.  If a licence holder fails to renew 

their licence on or before the respective expiry date, the licence will lapse and 
become invalid.  Licence holders should note that if they allow their licence to 
expire, they will be required to make a new application in full.  This will 
obviously incur a potentially significant time delay, and dependent upon the 
age of the existing licensed vehicle, it may require a change in vehicle to meet 
the age requirements set out in Section 2.14 of this policy.  The cost 
implications of failing to renew a licence could therefore be significant, and 
licence holders are therefore strongly advised to ensure that they renew their 
licence before the expiry date.  If the licence holder is aware of any reason that 
they may not be able to renew their licence before the expiry date, they must 
inform the Licensing Section immediately. 

 

 TRAILERS 
 
2.54 Hackney Carriage Vehicles are prohibited to tow a trailer. 
 

 COLLISIONS/INCIDENTS 
 
2.55 A licence will be suspended if, upon the reporting an incident to the Council, in 

a licensed vehicle, as required by the licensing conditions , the Council is of the 

Tudalen 38



Page 23 of 23 

opinion that the damage caused materially effects the safety, performance or 
appearance of the vehicle or the comfort or convenience of passengers carried 
therein. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 39



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Page 1 of 8 

APPENDIX  1(A) 
 

SPECIFICATION AND CONDITIONS OF LICENCE FOR PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES 
 

1. SPECIFICATION OF VEHICLES 

 
1.1 General 
 

All vehicles shall have an appropriate “Type Approval” which is either a 
European Whole Vehicle Type Approval (EWVTA) or UK Low Volume 
Type Approval (UKLVTA).  Vehicles shall not have been altered since 
that approval was granted.  A Single Vehicle Type Approval (SVTA) or a 
Independent Vehicle Approval (IVA) may be accepted for wheelchair 
accessible vehicles.  Vehicles presented for approval, and while in use, 
shall comply with the Road Vehicles (Construction and Use) Regulations 
1986 and any subsequent amendments or re-enactments thereof. 
 

1.2 No fittings, other than those approved, may be attached to, or carried on, 
the inside or outside of the vehicle. 
 

1.2 A Private Hire vehicle shall be capable of carrying at least 4 and no more 
than 8 passengers. 
 

1.3 All vehicles must be right hand drive unless specifically exempt by the 
Council 
 

1.4 All vehicles shall be less than 5 years old (From the date of manufacture) 
for new licences and less than 12 years old from the date of manufacture 
for existing licences. 
 

1.5 All vehicles must be maintained to no less than the standards set out in 
the VOSA publication ‘MOT Inspection Manual” – Car and Light 
Commercial’, ISBN 0-9549239-0-1 as amended and the Council’s 
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Inspection Guidance 
 

1.6 The following sections provide the outline requirements of the Council’s 
specification for Private Hire vehicles prior to examination and testing by 
a designated testing station authorised by the Council. A list of 
authorised testing stations can be found attached. The exact mechanical 
requirements for inspection and testing are contained in the Council’s 
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Inspection Guidance. 

 
2. BODY 

 
2.1 The vehicle shall have no exterior visible signs of previous significant 

accident damage 
 

2.2 The paint work shall be of a professional finish and be one consistent 
colour over the whole of the vehicle’s bodywork 
 

Tudalen 41



Page 2 of 8 

2.3 The bodywork shall have no significant signs of corrosion.  Corrosion 
includes visible rust and signs of rust by virtue of the paintwork being 
blistered. 
 

2.4 Running boards shall only be permitted where they are fitted by 
manufacturers.  The board shall be a minimum 125mm in width, all of 
which shall be available as a step.  
 

 
3. WHEELS AND TYRES 

 
3.1 The vehicle shall have four road wheels of uniform standard, size and 

style, which conform to construction and use regulations.   
 

3.2 An appropriate tyre repair system (as fitted by the manufacturer) must be 
provided.  

 
3.3 The appropriate repair system must only be used as an emergency 

measure ie to allow the vehicle to be driven to a place of repair. 
 
3.4 All tyres, including the spare tyre, shall comply with the vehicle 

manufacturer’s specification  
 
3.5 All tyres fitted to the vehicle shall meet current legal requirements at all 

times. 
 
4. INTERIOR 

 
4.1 The minimum leg room available to any passenger shall be 200mm.  The 

measurement will be taken from the base of the seat to the centre of the 
rear of the seat in front when the front seat is at its full, rearwards 
extension.  Where there is no seat in front the measurement will be taken 
from the base of the seat to the nearest obstruction in front. 

 
4.2 The internal headroom from the seat cushion to the lowest part of the 

roof in a vertical line shall be a minimum of 920 mm 
 
4.3 Vehicles must have adequate space for luggage to be kept in a clean, 

safe, secure and water tight manner 
 
4.4 Vehicles must have a water tight roof covering and properly carpeted or 

covered flooring (with no rips or tears) 
  
5. DOORS 

 
5.1 The vehicle shall have a minimum of 4 side opening doors which are 

easily accessible to passengers.  Access to and from vehicles such as 
minibuses will be determined on a case by case basis eg the rear door 
should not be a means of access. 

 
5.2 All vehicles shall have doors that open sufficiently wide to allow easy 

access in and egress from the vehicle. 

Tudalen 42



Page 3 of 8 

 
5.3 All doors shall be capable of being readily opened from the inside and 

outside of the vehicle by one operation of the latch mechanism 
 

5.4 The interior door handle shall be clearly visible and easily accessible to 
passengers when the door is in a fully open position and the means of 
operation of the door handle is easily identified. 
 

6. SEATS 
 

6.1 Vehicles shall have a passenger seating capacity of not less than 4 
persons and not more than 8 persons 

 
6.2 Each seat shall be fitted with fully operational seat belts, compliant with 

the appropriate Standards. 
 
6.3 Each seat shall be properly cushioned and be in a clean condition. 
  
6.4 Each seat shall not be less than 406 mm in width. 
 
6.5 Where bench seats are provided, then the seat shall provide a minimum 

of 406mm seating space for each passenger i.e. a rear bench seat shall 
not be less than 1218 mm in order to accommodate 3 passengers. 

 
6.6 Removed seating mounts must rendered irreplaceable and the floor 

surface to be smooth and unencumbered. 
 
6.7 All passenger seats must face forward or rearward to the direction of 

travel, (no passenger may sit sideways to direction of travel unless 
specifically exempt by an authorised officer of the Council eg limousines 

 
6.8 Any modification to seating configuration, including removal of seats, in 

any vehicle must be accompanied by an Individual Vehicle Approval 
Certificate. 

 
7. WINDOWS 

 
7.1 Opening windows shall be provided in the rear of the vehicle capable of 

being opened by the rear seat passengers 
 
7.2 Vehicle windows shall have visual transmission to ensure that the interior 

of the vehicle is clearly visible from the outside of the vehicle at all times.  
All vehicles shall be fitted with windscreen glass that has a light 
transmittance of 75%, and all other window glass shall have a light 
transmittance of not less than 70% EXCEPT those parts of the rear 
window or any side window adjacent to the luggage space in any estate-
type vehicle which can be of any tint fitted at manufacture providing it is 
not opaque 

  
7.3 No vehicle shall be fitted with any form of additional means to darken or 

tint the glass on any part of the vehicle. 
 

Tudalen 43



Page 4 of 8 

8. FACILITIES FOR WHEELCHAIR USERS 
 

8.1 Any vehicle that has the facility for the carriage of wheelchair or 
wheelchair passengers shall be fitted with: 
a.   Approved manufacturer installed anchorages that shall be either 

chassis or floor linked and capable of withstanding approved 
dynamic or static tests.  Restraints for wheelchair and passengers 
shall be independent of each other.  Anchorages shall also be 
provided for the safe storage of a wheelchair, whether folded or 
otherwise, if carried within the passenger compartment.  All 
anchorages and restraints shall be so designed that they do not 
cause any danger to other passengers and maintained in 
accordance with manufacturer’s specifications. 

b.   A ramp or ramps for the loading of a wheelchair and passenger 
shall be available at all times for use at the nearside rear 
passenger door.  An adequate locking device shall be fitted to 
ensure that the ramp(s) do not slip or tilt when in use.  Provision 
shall be made for the ramps to be stored safety in the vehicle 
when not in use. 

 
8.2 The vehicle shall be equipped with a manufacturer’s user manual /guide 

on the safe loading and unloading and security of wheelchair 
passengers. 

 
8.3 Any equipment fitted to the vehicle for the purpose of lifting a wheelchair 

into the vehicle shall have been tested in accordance with the 
requirements of the Lifting Operations and Lifting Equipment Regulations 
1998 immediately prior to being first licensed and  every 6 months 
thereafter.  A LOLER Certificate of  must be produced at the time of MOT 
and Compliance Testing to the Designated Testing Station and to the 
Licensing Office at grant and renewal of licence. 

 
9. FUEL SYSTEMS 

 
9.1  Fuel systems should be installed to current manufacturer and legal 

standards.  Before commencing any gas fuel conversions it is essential 
that written approval is sought for the Council. 

 
 

 CONDITIONS ATTACHED TO LICENCE 
 

11. MAINTENANCE OF VEHICLE 
 

11.1   The vehicle and all its fittings and equipment shall at all times when the 
vehicle is in use or available for hire, be kept in an efficient, safe, tidy and 
clean condition* and all relevant statutory requirements (including in 
particular those contained in Motor Vehicles (Construction and Use) 
Regulations shall be fully complied with. 
*Clean condition is defined as follows: 
“All body panels to be of uniform colour and finish throughout, unless 
otherwise authorised by the Council in writing, and to be washed and 
polished to a high standard.  Windows to be clear and smear free inside 

Tudalen 44



Page 5 of 8 

and out.  Carpets and seating to be vacuumed and to be without cuts, 
tears or staining” 
 

11.2     Every licensed vehicle must be maintained in a safe and clean condition 
at all times and is subject to such examinations as are required by the 
Council. 
 

11.3   Seats must be fully sprung, free of stains, tears, cigarette burns or repair 
and not threadbare. Floor coverings must not be unduly worn and present 
no trip hazards.  Household carpeting or similar is unacceptable and must 
not be used.  Upholstery (headlining and side panel coverings) must be 
free of ingrained grime, factures and maintained in the manufacturers 
original style. 

 
11.4 Without prejudice to the obligations imposed by 11.1 to 11.3 above and 

without prejudice to any other inspections as stipulated by the vehicle 
manufacturer, the proprietor of the licensed vehicle shall ensure that as a 
minimum the compliance of  routine maintenance inspections must be 
adhered to, and such inspections shall be recorded and retained (for a 
minimum of 18 months) and kept available for immediate production to an 
Authorised Officer of the Council or Police Officer on request. 

 
11.5 Please note that the requirement to inspect the licensed vehicle as imposed 

by the above condition does  not release the proprietor of the vehicle for his 
obligations to carry out further daily inspections to ensure compliance with 
the above conditions. A record of such daily inspections should be made 
available for immediate production to an Authorised Officer of the Council 
or Police Officer on request. 

 
12. ALTERATION OF VEHICLE 
 

12.1 No material alteration or change in the specification, design, condition, or 
appearance of the vehicle shall be made without the approval of the Council 
at any time while the licence is in force. 

 
13. IDENTIFICATION OF VEHICLE 

 
13.1 The plate identifying the vehicle as a Private Hire vehicle and required to 

be exhibited on the vehicle pursuant to Section 48(6) of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 shall be securely fixed 
on the outside of the vehicle in a conspicuous position and in such manner 
as to be easily removable by an Authorised Officer of the Council or a 
Police Constable. 

 
13.2 One Private Hire door sticker shall be adhered to each front door of the 

vehicle.  
 
13.3 On the boot and each rear side of the vehicle (below window height) the 

company name, words “private hire” and one telephone number (which 
must be used by the Operator of the vehicle), may be placed, at the 
licensees expense, PROVIDED that the details that is to be used by the 
Operator is first approved by the Council 

Tudalen 45



Page 6 of 8 

 
13.4 No pictures, icons, graphics, emblems or such like is allowed which may 

infer that the vehicle is a hackney carriage (taxi) 
 
13.5 Vehicles must not display anywhere on or in the vehicle the word “Taxi”, 

“Tacsi”, “cab” or any other word(s) which may, in the Council’s opinion 
lead the public to believe the vehicle is a hackney carriage. 

 
13.6 The licence plate and door signs must not be affixed to any other vehicle 

other than that stipulated on the current licence.  This equipment remains 
the property of the Council and must be surrendered immediately upon 
expiry, suspension or revocation of the licence. 

 
14. INTERIOR MARKINGS 

 
14.1 The proprietor shall cause to be clearly marked inside the vehicle in such 

a position as to be visible at all times to passengers therein, the number 
of this licence and the number of passengers prescribed in this licence. 
 

15. SAFETY EQUIPMENT 
 

15.1 There shall be provided and maintained in the vehicle at all times when it 
is in use or available for hire, a suitable and efficient fire extinguisher and 
a suitable first aid kit containing appropriate first aid dressings and 
appliance, such equipment to be carried in such a position in the vehicle 
as to be readily visible and available for immediate use in an emergency.  
It should be noted that the first aid kit is intended for use by a person who 
has the appropriate knowledge of first aid.  
 

16. SIGNS AND NOTICES  
 

16.1 No signs, notices, advertisements, plates, marks, numbers, letters, 
figures, symbols, emblems, or devices whatsoever shall be displayed on, 
in or from the vehicle except as may be required by any statutory 
provision, including byelaws or conditions  
 
The above condition will not apply to: 
 

a. Any indication on a taximeter visible only from the interior of the 
vehicle, or 

b. The display by the driver of a hand-held card which is displayed 
in, on or from the vehicle whilst it is stationary, provided that such 
card; 

i. contains no words or numbers other than the names of the 
licensed operator of the vehicle or the name under which 
he carried on his business and, in either case, the name of 
a passenger or passengers to be carried in the vehicle, and 

ii. if the licensed operator charges for journeys in accordance 
with a scale of fares, a copy of such scale shall be 
displayed in the vehicle for the information of passengers in 
a form previously submitted and approved by the Council. 

iii. Any safety notices eg instructions on door latch operation  

Tudalen 46



Page 7 of 8 

 
17. RADIO EQUIPMENT 

 
17.1 Neither the Operator, proprietor nor the driver of a Private Hire vehicle 

shall use or cause or suffer to be used in any vehicle any radio 
equipment for operational communication between Operator and Driver, 
or between drivers of other Private Hire vehicles, except for fully licensed 
closed channel equipment shall be used for operational communication. 

 
17.2 Each Private Hire Operator must  have a written policy on the use of 

mobile phones in vehicles,  which should have regard to the legal 
requirements and any available guidance. 
 

18. CHANGE OF ADDRESS 
 

18.1 The proprietor shall notify the Council, in writing, of any change of 
address during the period of the licence, within seven days of such 
change taking place. 
 

19. CONVICTIONS 
 

19.1 The proprietor shall, within seven days, disclose to the Council, in writing, 
details of any convictions, formal cautions, absolute discharges, or fixed 
penalties, imposed on him/her (or if the proprietor is a company or 
partnership, or any of the directors or partners) during the period of the 
licence. 
 

20. DEPOSIT OF DRIVING LICENCE 
 

20.1 If the proprietor permits or employs any other person to drive the vehicle 
as a Private Hire vehicle, he shall, before that person commences to 
drive the vehicle, cause the driver to deliver to him his Private Hire 
Vehicle Driver’s licence for retention until such time as the driver ceases 
to be permitted or employed to drive the vehicle or any other vehicle of 
his. 
 

21. PERMITTED DRIVERS OF THE VEHICLE 
 

21.1 The proprietor or any other person permitted or employed to drive the 
vehicle as a Private Hire vehicle, must be the holder of a current Private 
Hire driver’s licence or a dual Hackney Carriage and Private Hire driver 
licence granted by Denbighshire County Council. 
 

22. DEPOSIT OF VEHICLE LICENCE 
 

22.1 The proprietor shall, upon the vehicle commencing work with an 
operator, deposit with the operator this licence for retention by him until 
such time as that vehicle ceases to work for that operator. 
 

23. INSPECTION AND TESTING 
 

Tudalen 47



Page 8 of 8 

23.1 The proprietor shall, if requested by an Authorised Officer of the Council 
or a Police Officer, make the vehicle available for inspection and testing 
at such time and date as may be specified.  Such inspections and testing 
shall be in addition to any other statutory provisions. 
 

24. COLLISIONS 
 

24.1 The proprietor shall report to the Licensing Section, in writing, as soon as 
reasonably practicable and in any such event within 72 hours of the 
occurrence thereof, any accident to the vehicle causing damage 
materially effecting the safety, performance or appearance of the vehicle 
or the comfort or convenience of passengers therein. 

 
24.2 In the event of a licence being suspended due to the nature of the 

damage, the proprietor shall have the vehicle tested at a nominated 
testing station and submit the compliance certificate for examination prior 
to the licence being re-instated. 

 
25. CARRIAGE OF CHILDREN 
 
25.1 The carriage of children shall comply with the latest requirements set by 

legislation. Further guidance can be found at www.dft.gov.uk 
 
25.2 The vehicle must not carry children in pushchairs; the pushchair must be 

folded up and stored. 
 
26. LICENSING POLICY 

 
26.1 The Council’s Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy and 

this vehicle specification and conditions shall be adhered to at all times.   

Tudalen 48

http://www.dft.gov.uk/


Page 1 of 8 

APPENDIX 1(B) 
 

SPECIFICATION AND CONDITIONS OF LICENCE FOR HACKNEY CARRIAGE 

VEHICLES 
 

1. SPECIFICATION OF VEHICLES 

 
1.1 General 
 

All vehicles shall have an appropriate “Type Approval” which is either a 
European Whole Vehicle Type Approval (EWVTA) or UK Low Volume 
Type Approval (UKLVTA).  Vehicles shall not have been altered since 
that approval was granted.  A Single Vehicle Type Approval (SVTA) or a 
Independent Vehicle Approval (IVA) may be accepted for wheelchair 
accessible vehicles.  Vehicles presented for approval, and while in use, 
shall comply with the Road Vehicles (Construction and Use) Regulations 
1986 and any subsequent amendments or re-enactments thereof. 
 

1.2 No fittings, other than those approved, may be attached to, or carried on, 
the inside or outside of the vehicle. 
 

1.3 A Hackney Carriage vehicle shall be capable of carrying at least 4 and no 
more than 8 passengers. 
 

1.4 All vehicles must be right hand drive unless specifically exempt by the 
Council 
 

1.5 All vehicles shall be less than   5 years old for new licences and less than 
10 years old from the date of manufacture for existing licences. 
 

1.6 All vehicles must be maintained to no less than the standards set out in 
the VOSA publication ‘MOT Inspection Manual” – Car and Light 
Commercial’, ISBN 0-9549239-0-1 as amended  and the Council’s 
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Inspection Guidance  
 

1.7 The following sections provide the outline requirements of the Council’s 
specification for Hackney Carriage vehicles prior to examination and 
testing by a designated testing station authorised by the Council. A list of 
authorised testing stations can be found at Appendix (to be confirmed) .  

 
2. BODY 

 
2.1 The vehicle shall have no exterior visible signs of previous significant 

accident damage 
 

2.2 The paint work shall be of a professional finish  
 
2.3 The bodywork shall have no significant signs of corrosion.  Corrosion 

includes visible rust and signs of rust by virtue of the paintwork being 
blistered. 
 

Tudalen 49



Page 2 of 8 

2.4 Running boards shall only be permitted where they are fitted by 
manufacturers.  The board shall be a minimum 125mm in width, all of 
which shall be available as a step.  
 

 
3. WHEELS AND TYRES  

 
3.1 The vehicle shall have four road wheels of uniform standard, size and 

style, which conform to construction and use regulations.   
 

3.2 An appropriate tyre repair system (as fitted by the manufacturer) must be 
provided.  

 
3.3 The appropriate repair system to only be used as an emergency 

measure ie to allow the vehicle to be driven to a place of repair. 
 

3.4 All tyres, including the spare tyre, shall comply with the vehicle 
manufacturer’s specification  

 
3.5 All tyres fitted to the vehicle shall meet current legal requirements at all 

times. 
 
4. INTERIOR 

 
4.1 The minimum leg room available to any passenger shall be 200mm.  The 

measurement will be taken from the base of the seat to the centre of the 
rear of the seat in front when the front seat is at its full, rearwards 
extension.  Where there is no seat in front the measurement will be taken 
from the base of the seat to the nearest obstruction in front. 

 
4.2 The internal headroom from the seat cushion to the lowest part of the 

roof in a vertical line shall be a minimum of 920 mm 
 
4.3 Vehicles must have adequate space for luggage to be kept in a clean, 

safe, secure and water tight manner 
 
4.4 Vehicles must have a water tight roof covering and properly carpeted or 

covered flooring (with no rips or tears) 
  
5. DOORS 

 
5.1 The vehicle shall have a minimum of 4 side opening doors which are 

easily accessible to passengers.  Access to and from vehicles such as 
minibuses will be determined on a case by case basis eg the rear door 
should not be a means of access. 

 
5.2 All vehicles shall have doors that open sufficiently wide to allow easy 

access in and egress from the vehicle. 
 
5.3 All doors shall be capable of being readily opened from the inside and 

outside of the vehicle by one operation of the latch mechanism 
 

Tudalen 50



Page 3 of 8 

5.4 The interior door handle shall be clearly visible and easily accessible to 
passengers when the door is in a fully open position and the means of 
operation of the door handle is easily identified. 
 

6. SEATS 
 

6.1 Vehicles shall have a passenger seating capacity of not less than 4 
persons and not more than 8 persons 

 
6.2 Each seat shall be fitted with fully operational seat belts, compliant with 

the appropriate Standards. 
 
6.3 Each seat shall be properly cushioned and be in a clean condition. 
  
6.4 Each seat shall not be less than 406 mm in width. 
 
6.5 Where bench seats are provided, then the seat shall provide a minimum 

of 406mm seating space for each passenger i.e. a rear bench seat shall 
not be less than 1218 mm in order to accommodate 3 passengers. 

 
6.6 Removed seating mounts must rendered irreplaceable and the floor 

surface to be smooth and unencumbered. 
 
6.7 All passenger seats must face forward or rearward to the direction of 

travel, (no passenger may sit sideways to direction of travel unless 
specifically exempt by an authorised officer of the Council eg limousines 

 
6.8 Any modification to seating configuration, including removal of seats, in 

any  vehicle must be accompanied by an IVA Certificate. 
 
6.9 If the vehicle was originally constructed to seat more than 8 passengers 

(excluding the driver) it must not have been converted, modified or 
altered in any way which allows it to carry eight or less passengers 
(excluding the driver).  

 
7. WINDOWS 

 
7.1 Opening windows shall be provided in the rear of the vehicle capable of 

being opened by the rear seat passengers 
 
7.2 Vehicle windows shall have visual transmission to ensure that the interior 

of the vehicle is clearly visible from the outside of the vehicle at all times.  
All vehicles shall be fitted with windscreen glass that has a light 
transmittance of 75%, and all other window glass shall have a light 
transmittance of not less than 70% EXCEPT those parts of the rear 
window or any side window adjacent to the luggage space in any estate-
type vehicle which can be of any tint fitted at manufacture providing it is 
not opaque 

  
7.3 No vehicle shall be fitted with any form of additional means to darken or 

tint the glass on any part of the vehicle. 
 

Tudalen 51



Page 4 of 8 

8. FACILITIES FOR WHEELCHAIR USERS 
 

8.1 Any vehicle that has the facility for the carriage of wheelchair or 
wheelchair passengers shall be fitted with: 
a. Approved manufacturer installed anchorages that shall be either 

chassis or floor linked and capable of withstanding approved 
dynamic or static tests.  Restraints for wheelchair and passengers 
shall be independent of each other.  Anchorages shall also be 
provided for the safe storage of a wheelchair, whether folded or 
otherwise, if carried within the passenger compartment.  All 
anchorages and restraints shall be so designed that they do not 
cause any danger to other passengers and maintained in 
accordance with manufacturer’s specifications. 

b.   A ramp or ramps for the loading of a wheelchair and passenger 
shall be available at all times for use at the nearside rear 
passenger door.  An adequate locking device shall be fitted to 
ensure that the ramp(s) do not slip or tilt when in use.  Provision 
shall be made for the ramps to be stored safety in the vehicle 
when not in use. 

 
8.2 The vehicle shall be equipped with a manufacturer’s user manual /guide 

on the safe loading and unloading and security of wheelchair 
passengers. 

 
8.3 Any equipment fitted to the vehicle for the purpose of lifting a wheelchair 

into the vehicle shall have been tested in accordance with the 
requirements of the Lifting Operations and Lifting Equipment Regulations 
1998 immediately prior to being first licensed and  every 6 months 
thereafter.  A LOLER Certificate of  must be produced at the time of MOT 
and Compliance Testing to the Designated Testing Station and to the 
Licensing Office at grant or renewal of licence. 

 
9. FUEL SYSTEMS 

 
9.1  Fuel systems should be installed to current manufacturer and legal 

standards.  Before commencing any gas fuel conversions it is essential 
that written approval is sought for the Council. 

 

 CONDITIONS ATTACHED TO LICENCE 
 

10. MAINTENANCE OF VEHICLE 
 
The vehicle and all its fittings and equipment shall at all times when the 
vehicle is in use or available for hire, be kept in an efficient, safe, tidy and 
clean condition* and all relevant statutory requirements (including in 
particular those contained in Motor Vehicles (Construction and Use) 
Regulations shall be fully complied with. 
*Clean condition is defined as follows: 
“All body panels to be of uniform colour and finish throughout, unless 
otherwise authorised by the Council in writing, and to be washed and 
polished to a high standard.  Windows to be clear and smear free inside 

Tudalen 52



Page 5 of 8 

and out.  Carpets and seating to be vacuumed and to be without cuts, 
tears or staining” 
 

10.1   Every licensed vehicle must be maintained in a safe and clean condition 
at all times and is subject to such examinations as are required by the 
Council. 
 

10.2    Seats must be fully sprung, free of stains, tears, cigarette burns or repair 
and not threadbare. Floor coverings must not be unduly worn and 
present no trip hazards.  Household carpeting or similar is unacceptable 
and must not be used.  Upholstery (headlining and side panel coverings) 
must be free of ingrained grime, factures and maintained in the 
manufacturers original style. 
 

10.3   Without prejudice to the obligations imposed by 10.1 to 10.3 above and 
without prejudice to any other inspections as stipulated by the vehicle 
manufacturer, the proprietor of the licensed vehicle shall ensure that as a 
minimum the compliance of routine maintenance inspections must be 
adhered to, and such inspections shall be recorded and retained (for a 
minimum of 18 months) and kept available for immediate production to 
an Authorised Officer of the Council or Police Officer on request. 
 

10.4    Please note that the requirement to inspect the licensed vehicle as 
imposed by the above condition does not release the proprietor of the 
vehicle for his obligations to carry out further daily inspections to ensure 
compliance with the above conditions. 

       
11. ALTERATION OF VEHICLE 
 

11.1 No material alteration or change in the specification, design, condition or 
appearance of the vehicle must be made subsequent to the inspection of 
the vehicle by the Council at any time whilst the licence is in fore and at 
all times the vehicle shall comply with the specifications of the Council for 
a licensed hackney carriage.  Vehicles which have been modified in any 
way from the manufacturer’s standard of construction may not be 
considered suitable for licensing purposes depending upon the nature of 
the modification.  

 
12. IDENTIFICATION PLATE 

 
12.1 The plates identifying the vehicle as a Hackney Carriage vehicle and 

required to be exhibited on the vehicle pursuant to Section 51 of the 
Town Police Clauses Act 1847 shall be securely fixed on the outside of 
the vehicle at the front and rear, at or above bumper height and as near 
vertically as possible, but fixed nevertheless in such a manner as to be 
easily removable by an Authorised Officer of the Council or a Police 
Constable. 
 

12.2 One internal window sticker, as provided by the Council, to be placed on 
the rear passenger window. 

 

Tudalen 53



Page 6 of 8 

12.3 The licence plates and internal window signs must not be affixed to any 
other vehicle other than that stipulated on the current licence.  This 
equipment remains the property of the Council and must be surrendered 
immediately upon expiry, suspension or revocation of the licence. 

 
13. INTERIOR MARKINGS 

 
13.1 The proprietor shall cause to be clearly marked inside the vehicle in such 

a position as to be visible at all times to passengers therein, the number 
of this licence and the number of passengers prescribed in this licence. 
 

14. SAFETY EQUIPMENT 
 

14.1 There shall be provided and maintained in the vehicle at all times when it 
is in use or available for hire, a suitable and efficient fire extinguisher and 
a suitable first aid kit containing appropriate first aid dressings and 
appliance, such equipment to be carried in such a position in the vehicle 
as to be readily visible and available for immediate use in an emergency.  
It should be noted that the first aid kit is intended for use by a person who 
has the appropriate knowledge of first aid.  
 

15. SIGNS AND NOTICES  
 

15.1 A Proprietor may display on the side and/or rear of the vehicle, below 
window level, the company name under which the vehicle is operated 
and/or its telephone number, but no other signs, emblems or notices 
shall be displayed either outside or inside the vehicle without specific 
written permission from the Council. 

 
15.2 Any Proprietor wishing to use or sell space on the vehicle for the 

advertising of another company/business must first apply to the Council 
with a draft advert for consideration. Only one authorised advert will be 
permitted 

 
15.3 Such adverts must not: 
 i) contain anything religious or political 
 ii) advertise alcohol or tobacco 
 iii) be pornographic or offensive to good taste 
 iv) promote discounted fares, or 
 v) advertise jobs 

 
16. RADIO EQUIPMENT 

 
16.1 Neither the Operator, proprietor nor the driver of a Hackney Carriage 

vehicle shall use or cause or suffer to be used in any vehicle any radio 
equipment for operational communication between Operator and Driver, 
or between drivers of other Hackney Carriage and Private Hire vehicles,.  
except for fully licensed closed channel equipment shall be used for 
operational communication. 

 

Tudalen 54



Page 7 of 8 

16.2 Each Hackney Carriage Proprietor/Operator should have a written policy 
on the use of mobile phones whilst driving, which should have regard to 
the latest available guidance on the use of mobile phones whilst driving 

 
17. METERS AND FARES 
 
17.1 The vehicle must be fitted with a taxi meter which must comply with the 

current legislative requirements.  The taxi meter shall: 
 

a. show the fare recorded on the taximeter in clearly legible figures, and 
the word ‘FARE’ shall be clearly displayed so as to apply such 
figures; 

b. the meter shall be set in accordance with the Council’s Table of 
Hackney Carriage Fares., the tariffs with which the meter has be 
calibrated must be displayed in the vehicle in such a position as to be 
visible to passengers.  Such a table must show full particulars of all 
tariffs calibrated on the meter. 

 
17.2 Meters in use must not facilitate fraudulent use.  Any signs of tampering 

including the breaking of any seals will result in a suspension notice 
being issued immediately.  For the suspension notice to be removed, 
the vehicle meter must have been sealed and calibrated by an 
approved meter company and presented to the Council for inspection 

 
18. CARRIAGE OF CHILDREN 
 
18.1 The carriage of children shall comply with the latest requirements set by 

legislation. Further guidance can be found at www.dft.gov.uk 
 
18.2   The vehicle should not carry children in pushchairs; the pushchair should 

be folded up and stored 
 
19. CHANGE OF ADDRESS 

 
19.1 The proprietor shall notify the Council, in writing, of any change of 

address during the period of the licence, within seven days of such 
change taking place. 
 

20. CONVICTIONS 
 

20.1 The proprietor shall, within seven days, disclose to the Council, in writing, 
details of any convictions, formal cautions, absolute discharges, or fixed 
penalties, imposed on him/her (or if the proprietor is a company or 
partnership, or any of the directors or partners) during the period of the 
licence. 
 

21. DEPOSIT OF DRIVING LICENCE 
 

21.1 If the proprietor permits or employs any other person to drive the vehicle 
as a Hackney Carriage vehicle, he shall, before that person commences 
to drive the vehicle, cause the driver to deliver to him his Hackney 
Carriage Vehicle Driver’s licence for retention until such time as the 

Tudalen 55

http://www.dft.gov.uk/


Page 8 of 8 

driver ceases to be permitted or employed to drive the vehicle or any 
other vehicle of his. 
 

22. PERMITTED DRIVERS OF THE VEHICLE 
 

22.1 The proprietor or any other person permitted or employed to drive the 
vehicle as a Hackney Carriage vehicle, must be the holder of a current 
Private Hire driver’s licence or a dual Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
driver licence granted by Denbighshire County Council according with 
Section 51 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 
 

23. DEPOSIT OF VEHICLE LICENCE 
 

23.1 The proprietor shall, upon the vehicle commencing work with operator, 
deposit with the operator this licence for retention by him until such time 
as that vehicle ceases to work for that operator. 
 

24. INSPECTION AND TESTING 
 

24.1 The proprietor shall, if requested by an Authorised Officer of the Council 
or a Police Officer, make the vehicle available for inspection and testing 
at such time and date as may be specified.  Such inspections and testing 
shall be in addition to any other statutory provisions. 
 

25. COLLISION 
 

25.1 The proprietor shall report to the Licensing Officer, in writing, as soon as 
reasonably practicable and in any such event within 72 hours of the 
occurrence thereof, any accident to the vehicle causing damage 
materially effecting the safety, performance or appearance of the vehicle 
or the comfort or convenience of passengers therein. 

 
25.2 In the event of a licence being suspended due to the nature of the 

damage, the proprietor shall have the vehicle tested at a nominated 
testing station and submit the compliance certificate for examination prior 
to the licence being re-instated. 
 

26. LICENSING POLICY 
 

26.1 The Council’s Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy (this 
document) shall be adhered to at all times.   

Tudalen 56



CCTV Appendix 1(c)  
 
General Requirements and conditions – Installation and Operation 
 
The holder of the licence must notify the Licensing Section in writing 
prior to installing a CCTV system in the vehicle.  Furthermore, the 
proprietor of the vehicle must ensure that appropriate signage is 
displayed so as to be visible inside and outside of the vehicle. 
 
CCTV systems must not be used to record conversations between members 
of the public as this is highly intrusive and unlikely to be justified except in 
very exceptional circumstances. Wherever possible, the CCTV system should 
not have any sound recording facility. However, if the system comes equipped 
with a sound recording facility then this functionality should be disabled.  
 
All equipment must comply with any legislative requirements in respect of 
Motor Vehicle Construction and Use Regulations. 
 
All equipment must meet any and all requirements as regards safety, 
technical acceptability and operational/data integrity. 
 
All equipment must be designed, constructed and installed in such a way and 
in such materials as to present no danger to passengers or to the driver, 
including impact with the equipment in the event of a collision or danger from 
the electrical integrity being breached through vandalism, misuse, or wear and 
tear. In particular, the camera(s) must be fitted safely and securely in such a 
way that it does not adversely encroach into the passenger area and must not 
impact on the safety of the driver, passenger or other road users. 
 
All equipment must be installed as prescribed by the equipment and/or vehicle 
manufacturer installation instructions by a competent  auto-electrician.  
 
The CCTV system must not weaken the structure or any component part of 
the vehicle or interfere with the integrity of the manufacturer's original 
equipment. 
 
All equipment must be installed in such a manner so as not to increase the 
risk of injury and/or discomfort to the driver and/or passengers. For example, 
temporary fixing methods such as suction cups will not be permitted, or 
lighting, such as infra-red, which emits at such a level that may cause 
distraction or nuisance to the driver and/or passengers. 
 
All equipment must be protected from the elements, secure from tampering 
and located such as to have the minimum intrusion into any passenger or 
driver area or impact on the luggage carrying capacity of the vehicle. 
 
It is contrary to the Motor Vehicle (Construction and Use) Regulations 1986 
for equipment to obscure the view of the road through the windscreen. 
Equipment must not obscure or interfere with the operation of any of the 
vehicle’s standard and/or mandatory equipment, i.e. not mounted on or 

Tudalen 57



adjacent to air bags/air curtains or within proximity of other supplementary 
safety systems which may cause degradation in performance or functionality 
of such safety systems. 
 
 
All wiring must be fused as set out in the manufacture’s technical specification 
and be appropriately routed. 
 
The location of the camera(s) installed within the vehicle must be for the 
purpose of providing a safer environment for the benefit of the taxi or private 
hire car driver and passengers, and not for any other purpose. 
 
All equipment must be checked regularly and maintained to operational 
standards, including any repairs after damage. 
 
All system components requiring calibration in situ should be easily 
accessible. 
 
Automotive Electromagnetic Compatibility Requirements (EMC)  
CCTV equipment must not interfere with any other safety, control, electrical, 
computer, navigation, satellite, or radio system in the vehicle. Any electrical 
equipment such as an in-vehicle CCTV system fitted after the vehicle has 
been manufactured and registered, is deemed to be an Electronic Sub 
Assembly (ESA) under the European Community Automotive Electromagnetic 
Compatibility Directive and therefore must meet with requirements specified in 
that Directive. 
 
CCTV equipment should be e-marked or CE-marked. If CE marked 
confirmation by the equipment manufacturer as being non-immunity related 
and suitable for use in motor vehicles is required. 
 
Activation of the equipment may be via a number and combination of options, 
such as - door switches, time delay, drivers’ panic button or in the case of 
incident/event recorder, predetermined G-Force parameters set on one or 
more axis (i.e. braking, acceleration, lateral forces) and configured to record 
for a short period of time before the event, during the event and a short period 
following the event. 
 
 
Security of Images 
All images captured by the CCTV system must remain secure at all times. 
The captured images must be protected using encryption software which is 
designed to guard against the compromise of the stored data, for example, in 
the event of the vehicle or equipment being stolen. It is recommended by the 
Information Commissioner that the data controller ensures that any encryption 
software used meets or exceeds the current FIPS 140-2 standard or 
equivalent. System protection access codes will also be required to ensure 
permanent security. 
 
Retention of CCTV Images 

Tudalen 58



The CCTV equipment selected for installation must have the capability of 
retaining images either: 
 
• within its own hard drive; 
• using a fully secured and appropriately encrypted detachable mass storage 
device, for example, a compact flash solid state card; 
• or where a service provider is providing storage facilities, transferred in real 
time using fully secured and appropriately encrypted GPRS GSM telephone) 
signalling to a secure server within the service provider’s monitoring centre. 
Images must not be downloaded onto any kind of portable media device (e.g. 
CDs or memory sticks) for the purpose of general storage outside the vehicle. 
The CCTV system must include an automatic overwriting function, so that 
images are only retained within the installed storage device for a maximum 
period of 31 days from the date of capture. Where a service provider is used 
to store images on a secure server, the specified retention period must also 
only be for a maximum period of 31 days from the date of capture. Where 
applicable, these provisions shall also apply to audio recordings. 
 
Use of information recorded using CCTV 
Any images should only be used for the purposes described in this document. 
 
Requests may be made to the data controller by Authorised Officers of the 
Licensing Section, the Police or other statutory law enforcement agencies, 
insurance companies/brokers/loss adjusters or exceptionally other appropriate 
bodies, to view captured images, or obtain audio recordings if applicable. The 
licence holder, as data controller, is responsible for responding to these 
requests.  
 
Police, Authorised Officers of the Licensing Section or other law enforcement 
agencies should produce a standard template request form, setting out the 
reasons why the disclosure is required. Alternatively a signed statement may 
be accepted. All requests should only be accepted where they are in writing, 
and specify the reasons why disclosure is required. 
 
Under the Data Protection Act 1998, members of the public may also make a 
request for the disclosure of images, but only where they have been the 
subject of a recording. This is known as a ‘subject access request’. 
Such requests must only be accepted where they are in writing and include 
sufficient proofs of identity (which may include a photograph to confirm they 
are in fact the person in the recording).  
 
Data controllers are also entitled to charge a fee for a subject access request 
(currently a maximum of £10) as published in the Information Commissioner’s 
CCTV Code of Practice. 
 
Signage  
 
All taxis and private hire vehicles with CCTV must display signage within the 
vehicle to indicate that CCTV is in operation.  Signs must be visible from the 
inside and outside of the vehicle. The signage must be displayed in such 

Tudalen 59



positions so as to minimise obstruction of vision and to make it as visible as 
possible to passengers, before and after entering the vehicle. 
 
In the limited circumstance where audio recording is justified, signs must 
make it very clear that audio recording is being or may be carried out and this 
must also be verbally brought to the attention of the passengers. 
 
The name and the contact telephone number of the licence holder, as data 
controller must be included on the sign. 
 
When the CCTV is activated in response to an incident, the driver of the 
vehicle must inform the person(s) recorded that their personal data was 
captured - as soon as practicable after the incident. 
They should also be informed of the purpose for which the device has 
been installed, being driver and passenger safety. 
 
 
 

Other Legal Requirements  
 
ICO Registration 
 
All proprietors of CCTV cameras must ensure that they comply with any 
regulations and codes of practise set by the Information Commissioners 
Office. This includes registering the details of the system.  
 
For further information contact the  

Information Commissioners Office 0303 123 1113 
 
https://ico.org.uk/about-the-ico/what-we-do/register-of-data-controllers/ 
 
 

 
 

Tudalen 60

https://ico.org.uk/about-the-ico/what-we-do/register-of-data-controllers/


Appendix 1(d) 

Additional Conditions for the licensing of specific vehicle types (limousines, 

fire appliance, specialist vehicles). 

Seat Belts  

Seatbelts must be fitted to all forward and rear facing seats and must be worn at all times by 

passengers whilst the vehicle is in motion. There is no legal requirement for seatbelts on 

sideways facing seats. 

Maximum Passengers 

The limousine’s seating capacity must be reduced where necessary to a maximum of 8 

passengers. 

Any seats in the driver’s compartment other than the driver’s seat shall not be used to carry 

passengers 

The vehicle must not carry more than 8 passengers at any time. (A babe in arms is classed as 

a passenger no matter what their age). 

In any advertisement publicising their limousine service, the operator must state that the 

vehicle is only licensed to carry 8 passengers. 

Alcohol / Entertainment 

No alcohol is to be supplied to passengers unless there is in force an appropriate 

authorisation under the Licensing Act 2003 permitting the sale or supply of the same 

If the occupants are below the age of 18, there should be no alcohol carried in the 

passenger compartment. 

Any glassware in the vehicle must be made of either shatterproof glass or plastic 

The driver shall not play or permit the performance of any film, video or similar media 
where any passenger in the vehicle is below the age permitted by the age classification to 
view the particular film etc. 
  
General 
 
No person involved in the operation of the vehicle may wear a uniform that may lead the 
passengers or members of the public to believe that they are a member of any emergency 
services. 
 
All lighting, sirens, signage and other ancillary equipment must not give the impression that 
the vehicle is an emergency services vehicle. 

 
No person under the age of 15 years may sit on a sideways facing seat. 
 
Physical assistance must be provided by the operator to ensure the safety of passengers 

Tudalen 61



when entering or leaving the vehicle. 
 

Any restriction to the access to certain groups of passengers must be clearly advertised on 
the promotional literature and stated at the time of the booking. 
 
All conditions contained in the Private Hire vehicle specification and conditions (Appendix 1) 
apply to limousines and novelty vehicles etc, apart from those that have been specifically 
exempt. 
 
Further additional conditions may also be applied where applicable. 
 
 
 

Tudalen 62



Private Hire Vehicles 
 

TRAILERS – Specification and Conditions 
 
Private Hire Vehicles licensed by Denbighshire County Council are permitted to 
tow trailers providing the trailer meets the following specification and conditions: 
 
Trailer Specifications: 
 

1. A Licensing Enforcement Officer must initially approve all trailers in 
regard to size and type of construction. 

 
2. When initial approval is granted and then annually when the towing 

vehicle undergoes its Council Test.  The tester/inspector must certify 
that the trailer meets the equivalent standards that would normally be 
required to pass a Ministry of Transport Test (MOT).  The garage’s 
authentication stamp must be applied to the certificate supplied by the 
inspector. 

 
3. The tow bar must meet with the type approval regulations in respect of 

all tow bars fitted to cars after August 1998 and be fitted by an 
approved agent. 

 
4. When towing a trailer, vehicles must have an offside and nearside rear 

exit, not including the rear back door ie a five door car/minibus 
 

5. The trailer must be of a design that  it does not interfere in any way 
with the operation of any emergency exits or wheelchair access ramps. 

 
6. Unbraked trailers shall be less than 750 KGs gross weight 

 
7. Trailers over 750 KGs gross weight shall be braked acting on at least 

two road wheels 
 

8. The maximum permissible length of the trailer shall be  7 metres 
including the drawbar and coupling 

 
9. The width of the trailer shall not be greater than the towing vehicle 

subject to no trailer being wider than 2.3 metres 
 

10. The maximum length for braked twin axle trailers is 5.54 metres 
 

11. The trailer’s body must be constructed of either glass-reinforced 
plywood/fibreglass or fully galvanised steel. 

 

Tudalen 63



12. The trailer’s full frame must be made of galvanised steel with a straight 
drawbar. 

 
13. Trailers must have been manufactured by a recognised manufacturer 

and have not been structurally altered since manufacture. 
 

14. A trailer may be used by more than one licensed towing vehicle but 
each licensed vehicle used to tow the trailer must be separately 
approved and the additional licence fee paid for each towing vehicle 

 
15. An additional licence plate will be issued by the Council for each 

licensed Hackney Carriage and Private Hire vehicle licensed to tow 
trailers and the relevant plate must be affixed to the rear of the trailer 
near the number plate whenever an approved trailer is towed by the 
licensed vehicle. 

 
Trailer conditions: 
 

1. The driver of the towing vehicle must hold the appropriate category on 
their DVLA driving licence 

 
2. The trailer must only be used on pre-booked journeys when excess 

luggage is to be carried and not for general use 
 

3. The licensed towing vehicle’s insurance must cover the towing of a 
trailer 

 
4. The trailer shall carry an appropriate  spare wheel, adequate tools to 

change a wheel and correctly inflated spare tyre at all times that it is in 
use for hire and reward  

 
5. The kerbside weight of the trailer when fully laden should not exceed 

that determined by the vehicle manufacturer as being the safe towing 
weight limit 

 
6. A suitable lid or other approved means of enclosure shall be fitted to 

secure the contents within the trailer when in use and to keep it 
watertight 

 
7. The trailer must at all times comply with all Road Traffic legislation 

requirements in particular those as laid down in the Road Vehicles 
(Construction and Use) regulations 1986 

 
8. The trailer shall not display any form of sign or advertisement apart 

from the licence plate issued by the Council.  
 

Tudalen 64



9. Any defect or damage to any kind occurring on the trailer must be 
reported to the Council within 72 hours. 

Tudalen 65



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



     Appendix 2 

Summary of response received Licensing Authority action/response 

Provide justification for the need for a new licensed vehicle Condition removed 

Replacement of vehicles in line with up to date environmental considerations No action required 

The age restrictions for age restrictions are unfair and unacceptable as age of 
a vehicle is not linked to condition 

Considered but appropriate to retain current proposed age 
restriction as age is a major factor of condition. The current 
proposal allows drivers to plan ahead for their replacement 
vehicles 

How is the annual compliance check at Fleet Services monitored? Procedures and databases in place to capture relevant data 

Requirement for “new to fleet” vehicles  inspected only on a Tuesday at DCC 
Fleet Services 

Condition removed 

A need for guidance on fair wear and tear for paintwork is needed in 
paragraph 2.2  of the Specification and Conditions 

Requirement is for professional finish and a consistent 
colour. Fair wear and tear is not a particular specification 
of this paragraph 

A need for fair wear and tear for condition of vehicles Requirement is for vehicle to be kept in a safe and clean 
condition.  Fair wear and tear is not relevant to safe and 
clean so long as the vehicle is maintained as such 

To provide evidence of financial ability to maintain a vehicle Condition removed 

Hackney Carriages should be permitted to tow trailers Considered but appropriate to retain current proposal. The 
purpose of the restriction for Hackney Carriages is that 
there is not sufficient rank space to accommodate vehicles 
and trailers given the number of hackney carriage vehicles 
licensed. It is permissible for Private Hire vehicles to tow a 
trailer as the journeys are pre-booked. 

 

T
udalen 67



M
ae tudalen hw

n yn fw
riadol w

ag



ADRODDIAD I'R: Pwyllgor Trwyddedu 

DYDDIAD: 7 Rhagfyr 2016 

SWYDDOG ARWEINIOL: Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cynllunio a 
Gwarchod y Cyhoedd 

SWYDDOG CYSWLLT: Rheolwr Busnes Gwarchod y Cyhoedd 
trwyddedu@denbighshire.gov.uk 
01824 706066 

PWNC: Diweddariad ar Weithdrefn Pwyntiau 
Cosb 

 
 

1. PWRPAS YR ADRODDIAD 

1.1 Darparu aelodau â diweddariad blynyddol ar Weithdrefn Pwyntiau Cosb. 

 

2. 
 
2.1 
 
 
 
 
2.2 
 

CRYNODEB GWEITHREDOL 
 
Mae'r Polisi a Gweithdrefn Pwyntiau Cosb yn ddogfen unigol sy'n 
cwmpasu sut y bydd y Cyngor yn ymdrin â mân achosion o ran 
trwyddedu tacsis ac fe'i cymeradwywyd gan yr Aelodau ym mis Medi 
2014 ac fe'i diweddarwyd ym mis Medi 2015.   
 
Mae cyhoeddi pwyntiau wedi bod yn digwydd ers mis Ionawr 2015.   
 

 

3. 
 
3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
3.3 
 
 
 

GWYBODAETH GEFNDIROL 
 
Cyfrifoldeb allweddol y cyngor dan y ddeddfwriaeth drwyddedu yw 
sicrhau mai dim ond pobl addas a phriodol sy’n cael trwyddedau ac yn 
parhau i fod yn yrwyr neu weithredwyr cerbydau hacni / hurio preifat. 
Mae hyn er mwyn sicrhau diogelwch y rhai sy'n defnyddio cerbydau 
hacni a cherbydau hurio preifat a'r cyhoedd.  
 
Bydd Aelodau yn ymwybodol y cyflwynwyd Polisi a Gweithdrefn 
Pwyntiau Cosb diwygiedig gan y Swyddogion yn y cyfarfod Pwyllgor ym 
mis Medi 2015.  
     
Yn dilyn cyfnod o ymgynghori penderfynwyd bod yr Aelodau am 
fabwysiadu’r Polisi a Gweithdrefn Pwyntiau Cosb diwygiedig yn ystod 
eu cyfarfod Pwyllgor ym mis Mawrth 2016.    
 

Tudalen 69

Eitem Agenda 6

mailto:trwyddedu@denbighshire.gov.uk


3.4 
 
3.5 
 
 
3.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Caiff y Polisi a Gweithdrefn eu hadolygu bob tair blynedd.    
 
Wrth fabwysiadu'r Polisi a Gweithdrefn, gofynnodd yr aelodau am 
adroddiad cynnydd flwyddyn ar ôl cyflwyno’r Polisi a Gweithdrefn.    
 
Y cyfnod ar gyfer y diweddariad hwn yw 1 Hydref 2015 – 30 Medi 2016. 
Bydd Aelodau yn nodi y pwyntiau o ddiddordeb canlynol:  

 Mae pwyntiau wedi’u dyfarnu i 15 gyrwyr ar y cyfan drwy gydol y 
flwyddyn.  Mae hyn yn cyfateb i 3% o yrwyr trwyddedig. 

 Nid oes un gyrrwr wedi bod yn rhan o sawl digwyddiad ac wedi 
eu dyfarnu â phwyntiau o ganlyniad i hynny. 

 Dyfarnwyd yr uchafswm o bwyntiau mewn digwyddiad unigol i 
bedwar gyrwyr. 

 Mae rhai gyrwyr wedi ymddangos ger bron y Pwyllgor hwn. 

 Roedd tri digwyddiad yn ymwneud â chyflwyno cerbyd a oedd 
mewn cyflwr peryglus ar gyfer prawf.  Mae hyn wedi cynyddu o 
ddau ddigwyddiad flwyddyn diwethaf.  

 Mae diffyg hysbysu am gollfarnau wedi treblu yn ogystal â 
cherbydau sy’n fudr tu mewn. 

 Mae digwyddiadau yn ymwneud â namau ar deiars wedi 
gostwng o 80% ac mae ysmygu mewn cerbydau wedi haneru o 
flwyddyn diwethaf. 
 

3.7 
 
 
3.8 

Gweler siart yn dangos y pwyntiau a ddyfarnwyd yn ystod y cyfnod yn 
Atodiad A. 
 
Bydd yr Aelodau’n nodi’r cynnydd mewn rhai mannau o’r cynllun 
Pwyntiau Cosb.  Mae Swyddogion yn cynnig y dylid parhau â 
negeseuon cynghorol drwy’r Newyddlenni ac erthyglau yn y wasg 
ynghyd â gwiriadau cydymffurfio min ffordd rheolaidd i ostwng diffyg 
cydymffurfio. 

 
4.  
 
4.1 
 
 
 

 
ARGYMHELLION 
 
Bod Aelodau'n cydnabod y wybodaeth a ddarperir ar y dadansoddiad 
o'r pwyntiau a ddyfarnwyd.  
 
 

 
 

Tudalen 70



Atodiad A 

 

Dadansoddiad o’r Pwyntiau a Ddyfarnwyd 

 

 

 

 

3, 

Diffyg hysbysu 

am gollfarn

1, 

Darparu 

gwybodaeth

gamarweiniol 

neu anghywir 

1, 

Diffyg cwrdd 

â'r côd 

ymddygiad

3, 

Cerbyd 

anniogel/ 

peryglus

1,

Cerbyd 

didrwydded 

neu 

ddiyswiriant

3,

Cerbyd yn 

fudr tu mewn

1,

Nam ar deiars

2, 

Ysmygu neu 

ganiatáu 

ysmygu

Tudalen 71



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



ADRODD I: Pwyllgor Trwyddedu 

DYDDIAD: 7 Rhagfyr 2016 
 

PRIF SWYDDOG: Pennaeth Cynllunio ac Amddiffyn y 
Cyhoedd  

SWYDDOG CYSWLLT: Uwch Swyddog Technegol 
(Trwyddedu) 
01824 706451 
 

PWNC: Adolygiad o Bolisi Masnachu ar y Stryd 

 
 

1. PWRPAS YR ADRODDIAD 

1.1 
 
 

Hysbysu Aelodau o’r cynnydd o ran adolygiad arfaethedig o bolisi masnachu 
ar y stryd Sir Ddinbych. 

2. 
 
2.1 
 
 

CRYNODEB GWEITHREDOL 
 
Ceisio barn Aelodau ar ddrafft pellach ar y polisi a cheisio cymeradwyaeth i 
ymgynghori ar y drafft terfynol. 
  

3. 
 
3.1 
 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
3.3 
 
 
 
3.4 
 
 
 
 
3.5 
 
 
 
 
 

GWYBODAETH GEFNDIR 
 
Yn 2015, penderfynodd Aelodau awdurdodi swyddogion i adolygu’r drefn 
masnachu ar y stryd er mwyn ymdrin ag anawsterau gyda’r drefn ac 
awgrymu gwelliannau i reoleiddio a chynorthwyo masnachu ar y stryd yn 
well o fewn y Sir. 
 
Yn eu cyfarfod diwethaf ym mis Medi 2016, cafodd Aelodau’r cyfle i ystyried 
polisi drafft cychwynnol a bu iddynt drafod y gwahanol opsiynau a fyddai’n 
cael eu hymgorffori mewn unrhyw ddrafft yn y dyfodol. 
 
Cytunwyd y dylai’r polisi diwygiedig gynnwys system o ganiatâd “bloc dros 
dro” neu ganiatâd “digwyddiad arbennig” i’w defnyddio yn ystod 
digwyddiadau cymunedol i symleiddio’r broses ac annog presenoldeb.   
 
Cyfeiriwyd at y digwyddiadau hyn ym Mharagraff 7 y polisi drafft sydd 
ynghlwm, fodd bynnag, rhagwelir y bydd y canllawiau terfynol a fydd yn 
berthnasol i'r cyfryw ddigwyddiadau yn cael eu pennu unwaith y bydd 
ymgynghoriadau gyda Chynghorau Tref wedi'u cwblhau. 
 
Cyfeiriwyd hefyd at y system bresennol o strydoedd sydd wedi’u gwahardd 
at ddibenion masnachu ar y stryd yn Y Rhyl a Phrestatyn a chadarnhaodd 
swyddogion y byddai rhan o’r adolygiad yn cynnwys p’un ai a fyddai unrhyw 
newid i’r system bresennol o strydoedd gwaharddedig ac a ganiateir yn 
briodol. 

Tudalen 73

Eitem Agenda 7



 
4.0 
 
 
4.1 
 
 
 
 
4.1.2 
 
 
 
 
4.1.3 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
 
 
 
5.0 
 
5.1 
 

 

SYLWADAU SWYDDOGION  

 

Wrth ystyried y system bresennol o strydoedd gwaharddedig ac a ganiateir, 
daeth i’r amlwg bod angen cynnal ymgynghoriadau manwl pellach gyda 
Chynghorau Tref a Chymuned ac adrannau perthnasol yn y Cyngor. 

 

Byddai hyn yn galluogi Swyddogion i sefydlu rhestr o safleoedd cymeradwy, 
gan ystyried p’un ai a oes, er enghraifft, unrhyw ardaloedd arbennig nad yw 
Cynghorau Tref yn dymuno eu defnyddio ar gyfer Masnachu ar y Stryd yn 
rheolaidd.  Yn debyg, efallai bod yna resymau technegol fel rheolau 
cynllunio neu orchmynion traffig sy'n cyfyngu ar fasnachu. 

 

Felly, mae’r swyddogion yn gofyn i’r Aelodau roi’r cyfle iddynt ymgymryd â’r 
gwaith a amlinellwyd uchod cyn cyflwyno’r polisi i’r cyhoedd ymgynghori 
arno. 

 

Efallai bydd yr Aelodau’n cofio bod swyddogion hefyd yn bwriadu diwygio’r 
raddfa ffioedd presennol ar gyfer Masnachu ar y Stryd; ar hyn o bryd, gall 
darpar fasnachwyr wneud cais am Ganiatâd am hyd at 1 flwyddyn. 

 

Ynghyd â drafft terfynol o’r polisi, mae Swyddogion yn bwriadu cyflwyno 
rhestr ffioedd wedi'i diwygio'n llawn i'r Aelodau yn eu cyfarfod nesaf. 

 

Er mwyn sicrhau bod ffioedd y cael eu hepgor mewn digwyddiadau arbennig 
yn briodol, mae Adran 7.0 y polisi diwygiedig sydd ynghlwm yn nodi y bydd 
masnachwyr sy'n mynychu digwyddiadau cymunedol er elw masnachol yn 
gorfod talu ffi masnachu ar y stryd. Fodd bynnag, bydd lle i ffioedd rhai 
digwyddiadau cymunedol bach neu’r rheiny sy’n cael eu cynnal at achosion 
elusengar gael eu hepgor. 

 

ARGYMHELLIAD 
 
Bod Aelodau’n ystyried cynnwys yr adroddiad hwn ac yn awdurdodi 
Swyddogion i barhau i weithio ar y Polisi Masnachu ar y Stryd drafft drwy 
weithio gyda Chynghorau Tref a Chymuned ac adrannau perthnasol y 
Cyngor i weld beth yw eu safbwyntiau cyn ymgymryd ag ymgynghoriad 
cyhoeddus ehangach. 

 
 

Tudalen 74



      Street Trading Policy  

  

     1 

  
    

  1 

   Purpose of the Policy  

1.1  This policy sets out Denbighshire County Council’s (hereafter referred to as 

the Council) framework for the management of street trading in Denbighshire. 

Through the street trading scheme the Council aims to regulate the location 

and number of street traders. The scheme also aims to prevent the 

obstruction of the streets of Denbighshire by street trading activities. In doing 

so, it recognises the importance of licensed businesses to the local economy 

and the character of the area whilst trying to ensure that the activities do not 

cause nuisance or annoyance to the people in the area.  

  

1.2  This document will guide the Licensing Authority when it considers 

applications for Street Trading Consents. It will inform applicants of the 

parameters in which the authority will make decisions and how their needs will 

be addressed.  

  

1.3  It also highlights the Council’s undertaking to avoid duplication with other 

statutory provisions and our commitment to work in partnership with other 

enforcement agencies.  

  

2 Consultation  

2.1  In determining this policy, the Council has consulted the following people and 

bodies:  

 

• North Wales Police  

• North Wales Fire and Rescue Service  

• Denbighshire County Council Highways  

• Denbighshire County Council Ward Members 

• Town and Community Councils 

• All current Consent Holders  

• The general public  

 

2.2 We have also consulted with relevant departments within Denbighshire 

County Council and have taken into account the views of all appropriate 

bodies and organisations. 

 

3 Review of the Policy  

3.1  This policy will be reviewed every three years. At the time of the review, we 

will again consult all interested parties. As well as the three-yearly reviews, we 

will continue to evaluate the policy and may update it at any time. Any minor 

changes will be considered by the Licensing Committee.  

  

4 Legislation and current provision  

 

4.1       In June, 2005 the Licensing Committee resolved to readopt Part 3, Schedule 

4  

Of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 relating to 

Street Trading in the whole of the County. 

       
S
                                     Te1t  A

Tudalen 75



      Street Trading Policy  

  

2      

 

‘Street Trading’ is defined as the selling or exposing or offering for sale of any 

article (including a living thing) in a street – subject to a number of exceptions 

such as:  

  

(a) Trading as a pedlar under the authority of a pedlar’s certificate granted 

under the Pedlars Act 1871.  

  

(b) Any trade in a market or fair, the right to hold which having been 

obtained by a grant, enactment or order.  

  

(c) Trading as a news vendor.  

  

(d) Trading at or adjoining a shop premises as part of the business of the 

shop.  

  

(e) Offering or selling things as a roundsman.  

  

Schedule 4 defines a street as any road, footway, beach or other area to 

which the public have access without payment; and a service area as defined 

in section 329 of the Highways Act 1980.   

  

A consent street is a street in which street trading can only take place if the 

consent of the local authority has first been obtained.  

  

Prohibited streets are streets where no street trading may take place at all.  

  

A licence street is a street that requires a formal licence before any form of 

street trading can take place.  

  

All streets in Denbighshire County Council are designated as consent streets 

with the exception of a number of Prohibited Streets in the Rhyl and Prestatyn 

Area. There are currently no licence streets within Denbighshire (a list of 

designated streets will be attached to the final policy when confirmed)  

  

Street Traders that serve hot food or drink at any time between the hours of 

23.00 and 05.00 will also require a Premises Licence for Late Night 

Refreshment under the Licensing Act 2003.  

  

    

5 The Licensing Process and Delegation of Functions  

 

5.1  This part of the document sets out how we will deal with applications for 

Street Trading Consent within Denbighshire. The Council aims to provide a 

clear, consistent licensing service for service users whilst aiming to protect the 

safety of highway users and residents and prevent nuisance or annoyance.  

  

5.2  Delegation is laid out in the Council’s Constitution as follows:  

  

Full Council sets policies on licensing.  

  

The Licensing Committee:  

  

Tudalen 76



      Street Trading Policy  

  

     3 

• recommends and reviews policies on licensing   

• sets and reviews licence fees   

• agrees and varies a street trading scheme.   

• decide applications to renew street trading permission when there has                  

been a complaint about the trader or the trader has broken the conditions of 

their street trading permission in the past year.   

 

 The Head of Planning and Public Protection is authorised to:  

  

(a) Issue Street Trading Consents and attach such conditions as are 

necessary under the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 

1982;  

  

(b) Refuse any application for a Consent that:  

(i) in the opinion of the Head of Planning and Public Protection does not     

comply with the Council’s conditions and policies;  

(ii) where there are objections from any of the following consultees;  

(Police, Fire or Highways on the grounds of Public or Highway safety);  

  

(c) Refer applications to the Licensing Committee:  

(i) when there has been a complaint about the trader or the trader has 

broken the conditions of their Street Trading Consent in the past year; 

(ii) where there is competition for a vacant approved site.  

  

(d) Suspend a Consent for a period of up to 28 days pending referral to the           

Licensing Committee or Food Health & Safety Team where serious food 

safety issues are found.  

  

  New Applications for a Street Trading Consent   

5.3  An application for Street Trading Consent must be made to the Council in 

writing. The following will be required to be submitted with the application:  

   

(a) A completed and signed Street Trading Consent Application Form.   

  

(b) The full application fee as appropriate.   

  

(c) Where the proposed street activity is from a fixed position, a copy of a    

map of at least 1:1250 scale. The map should clearly identify the 

proposed site position by marking the site boundary with a red line.   

  

(d) Colour photographs of the stall, van, barrow, cart etc. that will be used for 

the street trading activity.   

  

(e) A certificate of Public Liability Insurance that covers the street trading 

activity for third party and public liability risks. The minimum insurance 

cover shall be £5,000,000.  

  

(f) A current Level 2 Award in Food Safety in Catering certificate for all food 

handlers.   

  

(g) A valid Waste Transfer Note.  

  

Tudalen 77



      Street Trading Policy  

  

4      

(h) Proof of the applicant’s and any prospective employee’s right to work in 

the UK.  

  

(i) Gas safety certificate for the vehicle or stall if applicable.   

 

5.4 Street Trading Consents are issued for a period of up to one year and renewed 

annually, unless granted for a reduced period.  

  

5.5 Before a Street Trading Consent is granted or refused the Council will carry out 

a consultation process with various persons and groups. In particular the 

following organisations or persons are consulted:  

 

 

• Denbighshire County Council Highways   

• North Wales Police  

• Ward Councillors   

• Planning  

• Food and Environmental Health  

  

Written observations from the above organisations will be sought and taken 

into consideration when determining an application.  

  

5.6  Street Trading Consents will not normally be granted where:   

  

• A significant effect on road safety would arise either from the siting of the 

trading activity itself, or from customers visiting or leaving the site.  

  

• There is a conflict with Traffic Orders such as waiting restrictions.  

  

• The site or pitch obstructs either pedestrian or vehicular access, or traffic 

flows, or places pedestrians in danger when in use for street trading 

purposes.  

  

• The trading unit obstructs the safe passage of users of the footway or 

carriageway.  

  

• The pitch interferes with sight lines for any road users such as at road 

junctions, or pedestrian crossing facilities.  

  

• The supply of hot or cold food and drinks or confectionery between 07:30 

and 18:00 within 100 metres of the boundary of a school or college.  

  

   

5.7 In considering applications for the grant or renewal of a Street Trading 

Consent the following factors will be considered:  

  

(a) Public Safety  

Whether the street trading activity represents, or is likely to represent, a 

substantial risk to the public. Factors taken into account will include: 

obstruction, fire hazard, unhygienic conditions or danger that may occur when 

a trader is accessing the site.  

  

(b) Public Order  

Tudalen 78



      Street Trading Policy  

  

     5 

Whether the street trading activity represents, or is likely to represent, a 

substantial risk to public order. Traders will conduct themselves in a 

professional manner.  

  

(c) The Avoidance of Public Nuisance  

Whether the street trading activity represents, or is likely to represent, a 

substantial risk of nuisance to the public from noise and/or odour particularly 

in residential areas.  

  

(d) Appearance of the stall or vehicle  

The stall or vehicle must be maintained in good condition smart appearance 

and meet criteria, including size, laid down in the standard Consent 

conditions.  Photographs or sketches, including dimensions, must be provided 

with all new applications and requests for approval of changes to or 

replacement of a stall or vehicle. The general appearance of the vehicle or 

stall will also be considered in order to determine that the unit will not detract 

from the appearance of the surrounding area.  

  

(e) Needs of the Area  

The demand for the articles for sale, and the geographical location of the 

proposed site.  

  

(f) Environmental Credentials  

The impact of the proposed operation on the local environment including 

street surfaces and materials, power supply, carbon footprint, supply chain, 

packaging, waste minimisation, waste disposal and waste generated by 

customers. Provision of adequate measures to minimise the environmental 

impact of the proposed operation.   

  

(g) Food Traders  

Applicants to trade in hot or cold food must be able to demonstrate a good 

understanding of food safety and be registered as a food business with the 

relevant local authority.  As a minimum, food handlers must hold a current 

Level 2 Award in Food Safety in Catering accredited by The Chartered  

Institute of Environmental Health or The Royal Institute for Public Health.  

  

(h) Highway  

The location and operating times will be such that the highway can be 

maintained in accordance with Denbighshire County Council’s requirements 

and that there are no dangers to those who have a right to use the highway 

and no obstruction for emergency access.  

  

5.9  There is no statutory right of appeal against refusal to issue a Consent.  

  

 

 Mobile Street Trading     
  
5.10  Street traders that meet the conditions below will be classed as mobile. Ice 

cream vans and mobile sandwich sellers would typically be deemed to be  

street traders.  

  

5.11     Traders must meet all of the below conditions to be classed as mobile:  

  

Tudalen 79



      Street Trading Policy  

  

6      

• move from location to location  

• move at least 50 metres from the last trading location and do not return to 

that location within four hours  

• do not wait in one location for more than twenty minutes  

• do not trade within 100 metres of the boundary of any school or college 

between the hours of 07:30 and 18:00 (without formal invitation from the 

establishment).  

  

5.12    Due to the nature of their trade over a wide geographical area and their limited 

impact upon a single location mobile street traders will automatically be 

granted a street trading Consent subject to meeting all the above conditions 

and submitting a complete application.  

  

  Renewal Applications for a Street Trading Consent  

5.13  Street Trading Consents are renewed annually from the date of first grant, 

unless granted for a reduced period. A renewal application for Street Trading 

Consent must be made to the Council in writing at least 28 days before the 

date of expiry. The following will be required to be submitted with the 

application:  

   

(a) A completed and signed Street Trading Consent Application Form.   

  

(b) The full fee as appropriate.   

  

(c) A certificate of Public Liability Insurance that covers the street trading 

activity for third party and public liability risks.   

  

(d) A current Level 2 Award in Food Safety in Catering certificate for all food 

handlers.   

  

(e) Proof of the applicants and any prospective employees right to work in the 

UK.  

  

(f) A gas safety certificate for the vehicle or stall if applicable.   

  

(g) A licensed waste carrier agreement.  

  

5.14 At this renewal time, the Council may consult further to determine if the 

street trader is a cause for concern or has been the subject of complaints.  

  

5.15 If a renewal application is not made before the expiry of the current licence, 

a new application will have to be made. The effect of this will be that a 

trader will not be permitted to trade until the new Consent is issued.  

  

5.16 Where a renewal application has been made and there have been no 

justifiable complaints, no enforcement issues and all fees have been paid on 

time, the Consent will be renewed.  

  

5.17 Where a renewal application has been made and there have been 

complaints or enforcement issues or fees have not been paid on time, then 

the application will be referred to the Licensing Committee.  

  

Tudalen 80



      Street Trading Policy  

  

     7 

  Vacant Sites  
  

5.18  In the event of a Consent being revoked, surrendered or not renewed the 

Council will advertise vacancies on the Council’s website for 28 days. If there 

is more than one applicant for a vacant site, the applications will be referred to 

the Council’s Licensing Committee who will use the criteria listed at paragraph 

5.8 of this policy to make their determination of who to award the vacant site 

to.   

  

Transfers  

5.19  A Street Trading Consent cannot be transferred or sold to another person 

except that the Consent may be transferred to a member of the Consent 

Holder’s immediate family in the event of the Consent Holder’s death or 

incapacity on payment of a fee. The sub letting of a pitch is prohibited.  

  

6 Markets  

6.1  Markets (other than those classed as Special Events) are outside of the 

scope of the street trading scheme at this time.   

  

7 Special Events  

7.1  For events such as Christmas or Continental Street Markets, the Council will 

accept one application from the person organising the event. The event street 

trading application will require full details of each trader attending the event.  

Consent will be issued to each individual stall holder. This policy is aimed at 

promoting events and encouraging traders to attend.  

  

7.2  Street trading fees for stalls at charitable or special events may be waived.  

Street trading is considered to be for charity benefit if the profits from 

individual stalls/units are donated to charity. These stalls/units would be  

exempt from Street Trading fees. Any traders (such as traders selling food or 

refreshments) attending for commercial gain will be subject to a Street 

Trading fee. Trading at small community events will be exempt from Street 

Trading fees.  Approval for such events must be obtained by the organiser 

from the relevant Town & Community Council. 

    

8 Fees  

8.1  Fees will be set and reviewed annually on a full cost recovery basis.  The 

level of fees applicable takes into account the location, the duration of the 

Consent, trading hours, and the articles to be sold.  Where trading ceases 

during the term of Consent, refunds will not be given for any outstanding 

period of less than 3 months.  Details of the current fees can be found on the 

Council’s website or on application to the Licensing Officer.  Fees must be 

paid in advance. Consent fees may be paid in equal instalments, but the first 

instalment must be paid in advance of the issue of Consent.    

  

8.2  Applications for annual Consents should be accompanied by a non-

refundable fee deposit. If the application is approved, the balance of the fee 

will be due before the Consent is issued.  If the application is not successful 

the fee will be retained to cover the cost incurred in processing the 

application.  

Tudalen 81



      Street Trading Policy  

  

8      

  

9 Conditions  

9.1  The Council applies standard conditions to Street Trading Consents.   

  

• General conditions for annual and weekly Street Trading Consents  

• Additional conditions applicable to Special Events  

  

The standard conditions are not exhaustive and other conditions may be 

added to individual Consents where appropriate.  

  

9.2 Standard Trading Hours are:  

  

(a) Roadside locations for vehicles    

  

• Daytime site from 08:00 to 18:00.  

• Evening sites for the Sale of Hot Food from 18:30 to 03:00 (can 

be extended to 04:00 Thursdays, Fridays, and Saturdays on 

application and subject to approval).  

(b) Pavement locations  

   08:00 to 21:00.  

  

9.3 Street trading can only be carried out from the stall or vehicle 

authorised on the Certificate of Street Trading Consent.  Any changes 

to or replacement of the stall or vehicle must be approved by the Head 

of Planning and Public Protection.  

  

10 Enforcement  

10.1  The Council is committed to enforcing the provisions contained within the 

relevant legislation and to work in partnership with all enforcement agencies, 

to provide consistent enforcement on licensing issues.  

  

10.2  The Licensing Team aims to work closely with other enforcement authorities 

to regulate relevant legislation where necessary.  

  

10.3  Where licensable activities are conducted without the benefit of a licence, 

permit or consent or where conditions are breached, the Council will look to 

gather evidence and take enforcement action as appropriate.  

  

10.4  If the Council feels that there is an issue of public order or threat to public 

safety in any particular instance, it will call for assistance from North Wales 

Police. 

  

10.5  The Council may call for assistance from the CCTV centre when dealing with 

such issues.   

  

10.6 Failure to comply with one or more of the standard conditions of Consent 

may lead to revocation or non-renewal of Street Trading Consent.  

11 Contacts  

The street trading function is part of the Licensing Team within the Planning 

and Public Protection Team.  

Tudalen 82



      Street Trading Policy  

  

     9 

  

 

To enquire about any street trading issue, please visit our website:  

 or contact us via email licensing@denbighshire.gov.uk or by ringing the 

Licensing Team on 01824 706342. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 83

mailto:
mailto:licensing@denbighshire.gov.uk


      Street Trading Policy  

  

10      

ANNEX 1  General Conditions for Annual and Weekly Street Trading 

Consents  

  

1. No trading shall take place other than between the dates specified on the 

Street Trading Consent.  

2. Street trading shall only be carried out during operational hours specified on 

the Street Trading Consent.  

3. The Street Trading Consent relates only to the area/site vehicle or stall 

specified on the Street Trading Consent.  

4. The Street Trading Consent relates only to the vehicle or stall specified on the 

Street Trading Consent.  

5. Street trading can only be carried out from the stall or vehicle authorised 

under the conditions of the Consent.  Any significant changes to or 

replacement of the stall or vehicle must be approved by the Head of Planning 

and Public Protection. 

6. The Consent Holder’s vehicle/stall shall be kept in a clean, safe and well 

maintained condition and be of a presentable appearance. The Street Trading 

Consent bearing the name of the consent holder shall be displayed 

conspicuously on the stall/vehicle so that members of the public can clearly 

see it during hours of business.  

7. The Consent Holder’s vehicle shall be maintained in a roadworthy condition, 

taxed, insured and with a current MOT Certificate. Vehicle movements must 

be carried out legally and must not present a risk to people and structures. 

The Consent Holder shall not drive or park a vehicle on any part of a footway.  

8. The Consent Holder shall ensure that the stall/vehicle is positioned only in the 

allocated space (which may be marked on the ground) in the Consent Street 

for which the Street Trading Consent is issued. All goods shall be displayed 

on the stall and no freestanding racks or displays are permitted. If a Consent 

Holder or operator/assistant is requested to move the vehicle/stall by an 

authorized Council Officer or Police Officer they shall immediately comply 

with that request.  

9. The Consent Holder shall comply with all statutes, statutory instruments and 

byelaws currently in force.  

10. The Consent Holder shall conduct their business in a professional manner 

and in a way that minimises risks to employees and others.   

11. The Consent Holder must take reasonable precautions to prevent the risk of 

fire at the stall or vehicle. All hot food vans/trailers are required to comply with 

current legislation on fire safety. A serviceable fire blanket and a suitable fire 

extinguisher shall be provided in all vehicles selling hot food.  

12. Reasonable steps must be taken to ensure gas safety where gas appliances 

are used on a stall or vehicle.  Gas appliances must be maintained and 

serviced as per manufacturer’s instructions. Gas appliances and systems 

must be checked for safety by a competent Gas Safe engineer at least 

annually. Any faults or concerns in relation to gas safety must be  

appropriately investigated and made safe by a competent Gas Safe engineer 

as soon as possible.   

13. All hot food vans/trailers are required to carry a basic first aid kit and have the 

means to contact the emergency services if necessary.   

Tudalen 84



      Street Trading Policy  

  

     11 

14. All food businesses must be registered as a food business with the local 

authority where the van/stall is kept overnight.  All food businesses registered 

outside of the Denbighshire County Council area must be able to demonstrate 

food business registration, e.g. by written confirmation from the relevant local 

authority or by providing a copy of the latest inspection letter or report. Any 

changes in registration details must be notified to the relevant local authority.  

15. All food handlers must hold a current Level 2 Award in Food Safety in 

Catering accredited by The Chartered Institute of Environmental Health or 

The Royal Institute for Public Health.  

16. All food businesses must achieve and maintain a minimum Food Hygiene 

Rating of ‘3 – Generally Satisfactory’. The Hygiene Rating must be displayed 

prominently on the stall or vehicle.  

17. The Consent Holder shall not be the cause of any nuisance or annoyance to 

any other user of the highway, the occupier of any land or building or the 

Denbighshire County Council. Consent Holders shall have special regard to 

and must take action to prevent excessive noise.  

18. Legislation places a duty of care on businesses to dispose of their trade 

waste in an appropriate manner. Trade waste must be stored appropriately 

and be disposed of by a licensed waste carrier. No water or waste material 

shall be discharged on to the highway or any adjacent property. The Consent 

holder shall take reasonable steps to ensure that litter arising from their own 

trade is minimised as far as possible, for example by making a bin available 

for customers to use.  

19. A Street Trading Consent cannot be transferred or sold to another person 

except that the Consent may be transferred to a member of the Consent 

Holder’s immediate family in the event of the Consent Holder’s death or 

incapacity on payment of a fee. The subletting of a pitch is prohibited.  

20. The Consent Holder must be the principal operator and have day to day 

control of the stall/vehicle.  The Consent Holder may employ any other person 

to assist in operating the stall/vehicle and shall notify the Head of Planning 

and Public Protection of the name and address of that person. An 

administration fee will be payable.  

21. Anyone who operates a stall/vehicle other than the Consent Holder must be 

authorised by the Head of Planning and Public Protection.  

22. A Consent Holder may terminate a Street Trading Consent by written notice 

to the Head of Planning and Public Protection.  A refund of the portion of the 

fee equal to the remaining full months will be payable, less £50.00 which the 

Council will retain to cover administrative costs.  

23. Consent holders shall ensure that disabled people and wheelchair users can 

be adequately served. This may involve serving persons from outside the 

vehicle.  

24. A copy of the Consent shall be displayed by the operator when trading and 

must be produced on demand to a Council Officer or Police Officer.  

25. Consent Holders shall have and maintain a proper insurance policy against 

public liability and third party risks. The minimum insurance cover shall be 

£5,000,000 and shall cover the operator’s vehicle, or stall and any additional 

equipment under their control. If food is sold the insurance shall specifically 

include cover against food poisoning to the same amount. Proof of cover 

Tudalen 85



      Street Trading Policy  

  

12      

must be produced to an officer of Denbighshire County Council on application 

and as required.  

26. These general conditions, which apply to all Street Trading in Denbighshire, 

may be varied, having regard to a particular location. They are termed Special 

Conditions and listed on the Consent. These Special Conditions must also be 

complied with.  

27. For Annual Street Trading Consents fee instalments are required quarterly, in 

advance. The first instalment must be paid in advance of the issue of 

Consent.  The remaining fee can be paid in 3 further equal instalments on the 
following dates 1st July. 1st October and 2nd January. Annual fees may be paid 

in advance.   

28. The sale of food and/or drink is not permitted by Weekly Street Traders. The 

items to be sold must be agreed before a Weekly Consent can be issued.  

29. For food traders all packaging and utensils for use by customers shall be 

made of biodegradable or recyclable materials.  

    

Failure to comply with these conditions  

If a Consent Holder fails to comply with any of the conditions attached to a Street 

Trading Consent, the Consent may be suspended for an indefinite period or revoked. 

The Consent Holder may also be prosecuted.  

  

  

  

Additional Conditions Applicable to Special Events/Markets  

1. All stalls to be issued with a number that must be displayed on the stall.  

2. The Consent Holder should keep records of each stallholder present on the 

market, to include the stallholder’s pitch number, name and company name, 

their address, vehicle registration and a contact telephone number. This must 

be produced on request to an authorised officer.  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

  

Tudalen 86



      Street Trading Policy  

  

     13 

  

ANNEX 2 List of Small Community Events Exempt from Street Trading Fees  

  

  

 

To be confirmed following consultation

Tudalen 87



 

 

        

  

This page is intentionally blank 

Tudalen 88



 

 

  

 

Tudalen 89



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



ADRODDIAD I’R: Pwyllgor Trwyddedu 

DYDDIAD: 7 Rhagfyr 2016 

SWYDDOG ARWEINIOL: Pennaeth Cynllunio a Gwarchod y 
Cyhoedd 

SWYDDOG CYSWLLT: Uwch Swyddog Technegol 
(Trwyddedu) 
trwyddedu@sirddinbych.gov.uk 

01824 706451 
 

PWNC: Adolygu'r Polisi Sefydliad Rhyw 

 
 

1. PWRPAS YR ADRODDIAD 

 Rhoi gwybod i Aelodau am y sefyllfa bresennol o ran cynigion i lunio 
Polisi Sefydliad Rhyw drafft, diwygiedig. 

 

2. 
 
2.1 
 
 

CRYNODEB GWEITHREDOL 
 
Efallai y bydd Aelodau yn cofio y rhoddwyd adroddiad yn cynnig adolygu 
Polisi Sefydliad Rhyw’r Cyngor, ger eu bron ar gyfer ystyriaeth ym mis 
Mawrth 2015.  
 

 

3. 
 
 

PŴER I WNEUD Y PENDERFYNIAD 
 
Deddf Llywodraeth Leol (Darpariaethau Amrywiol) 1982. 

 
4. 
 
4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 

 
CEFNDIR 
 
Rhoddodd yr adroddiad gwreiddiol (Atodiad A ynghlwm) wybod i Aelodau 
am gyflwyniad Adran 27 o Ddeddf Heddlu a Throseddau 2009 a ail 
ddosbarthodd clybiau glin-ddawnsio fel lleoliadau o adloniant rhywiol a 
rhoi pŵer i awdurdodau lleol reoleiddio lleoliadau o’r fath fel Sefydliadau 
Rhyw o dan Atodlen 3 Deddf Llywodraeth Leol (Darpariaethau Amrywiol) 
1982.   
 
Hysbyswyd yr Aelodau nad oedd y pwerau hyn yn awtomatig ac y 
buasent  ond yn berthnasol pe baent yn cael eu mabwysiadu’n benodol 
gan yr awdurdodau lleol. O ganlyniad, gofynnwyd i’r Aelodau ystyried 
mabwysiadu darpariaethau Adran 27 a byddai angen ymgynghoriad 
cyhoeddus cyn eu gweithredu.  

Tudalen 91

Eitem Agenda 8



 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5. 
 
5.1 
 
 
 
5.2 
 
 
 
5.3 
 
 
 
 
6.0 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Wedi iddynt ystyried cynnwys yr adroddiad yn Atodiad A, cytunodd yr 
Aelodau y dylid gweithredu â’r bwriad o fabwysiadu’r ddeddfwriaeth 
angenrheidiol a diwygio’r Polisi Sefydliad Rhyw cyfredol o ran hynny.  
Penderfynwyd felly: 
 

(a) Y dylid gofyn i Swyddogion lunio Polisi Sefydliad Rhyw drafft 
diwygiedig sy’n addas i’r diben i’w gyflwyno mewn cyfarfod yn y 
dyfodol cyn cynnal ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus, ac 
 

(b) Y dylid mabwysiadu a chynnwys darpariaethau Adran 27 Deddf 
Heddlu a Throseddau 2009 o fewn y Polisi Sefydliad Rhyw drafft 
diwygiedig. 

 
YSTYRIAETH 
 
 Er nad oes safleoedd o'r math hwn yn Sir Ddinbych ar hyn o bryd, bydd 
mabwysiadu’r pwerau hyn yn gweithredu fel mesur ataliol rhag unrhyw 
safleoedd o’r fath yn y dyfodol. 
 
O achos llwythau gwaith presennol a’r angen i roi blaenoriaeth i greu ac 
adolygu polisïau, mae swyddogion o’r farn y byddant yn barod i gyflwyno 
Polisi drafft diwygiedig i’r Aelodau yn 2017/2018.  
 
 Hyd nes y bydd y polisi diwygiedig yn cael ei lunio a’i fabwysiadu, bydd 
swyddogion yn parhau i atgyfeirio ceisiadau'r dyfodol i’r Pwyllgor 
Trwyddedu o dan y gweithdrefnau presennol. 
                  
 
ARGYMHELLIAD   
 
Bod Aelodau yn nodi'r adroddiad ac yn cytuno ar y terfynau amser ynglŷn 
â llunio Polisi Sefydliad Rhyw drafft diwygiedig. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Tudalen 92



ADRODDIAD I'R:  

Pwyllgor Trwyddedu 

DYDDIAD: 4 Mawrth 2015 

SWYDDOG ARWEINIOL: Pennaeth Cynllunio a Gwarchod y 
Cyhoedd 

SWYDDOG CYSWLLT: Swyddog Trwyddedu 
licensing@denbighshire.gov.uk01824 
706451 
 

TESTUN: Adolygiad o Bolisi Sefydliad Rhyw 

 
 

1. PWRPAS YR ADRODDIAD 

 Rhoi gwybod i'r Aelodau am newidiadau i'r drefn sy'n awdurdodi 
trwyddedu safleoedd sy'n darparu adloniant rhywiol.   
 
Gofyn i Aelodau ystyried a yw newid i'r Polisi Sefydliad Rhyw presennol 
yn angenrheidiol. 
 

 

2. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CRYNODEB GWEITHREDOL 
 
Mae Deddf Llywodraeth Leol (Darpariaethau Amrywiol) 1982 yn gwneud 
darpariaeth ar gyfer trwyddedu sefydliadau rhyw gan awdurdodau lleol.   
Yng nghyd-destun y Ddeddf, mae "sefydliad rhyw" yn golygu sinema 
rhyw, sefydliad cyfarfyddiad rhyw neu siop ryw. 
 
Yn y Panel Trwyddedu a gynhaliwyd ar 19 Medi 2001, penderfynodd yr 
Aelodau fabwysiadu Atodlen 3 o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 
(Darpariaethau Amrywiol) 1982 yn ffurfiol gan ddod i rym ar 19 Tachwedd 
2001.  
 
Mae Adran 27 o Ddeddf Plismona a Throsedd 2009 yn ailddosbarthu 
clybiau glin-ddawnsio fel lleoliadau adloniant rhywiol ac mae’n rhoi pŵer i 
awdurdodau lleol reoleiddio’r fath leoliadau â sefydliadau rhyw o dan 
Atodlen 3 o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol (Darpariaethau Amrywiol) 1982. 
 
 

 

3. PŴER I WNEUD Y PENDERFYNIAD 
 
Deddf Llywodraeth Leol (Darpariaethau Amrywiol) 1982. 

Tudalen 93



 

 
 
4. 
 
4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.6 
 
 
 

 
 
CEFNDIR 
 
Pan fabwysiadwyd Atodlen 3 o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol (Darpariaethau 
Amrywiol) 1982 yn wreiddiol, penderfynodd yr Aelodau y dylid ystyried 
pob cais yn ôl ei deilyngdod ei hun, gan ystyried meini prawf penodol a 
oedd yn cynnwys ardal y safle, yr oriau agor, ac ati  
 
 
Ers 2005, mae ceisiadau am glybiau glin-ddawnsio wedi bod yn 
drwyddedadwy o dan Ddeddf Trwyddedu 2003. Fodd bynnag, mae 
canlyniadau ymgynghoriad gydag awdurdodau lleol yn 2008 wedi amlygu 
pryderon na roddodd y ddeddfwriaeth hon ddigon o bwerau i gymunedau 
reoli lle cafodd clybiau glin-ddawnsio eu sefydlu.  Er mwyn mynd i’r afael 
â phryderon o'r fath, cafodd adran 27 o Ddeddf Plismona a Throsedd ei 
gyflwyno yn 2010. 
 
Nid yw'r Ddeddf Trwyddedu yn caniatáu i wrthwynebiadau gael eu 
gwneud ar y fath sail â nifer o safleoedd yn yr ardal, addasrwydd adeilad 
i ddarparu gweithgareddau o'r fath neu gymeriad posibl yr ardal. 
 
Mae adran 27 yn rhoi mwy o bwerau i awdurdodau lleol reoli nifer a 
lleoliad y clybiau glin-ddawnsio a lleoliadau tebyg.  Nid yw'r pwerau hyn 
yn orfodol a byddant ond yn berthnasol lle maent wedi cael eu 
mabwysiadu’n benodol.  Lle cânt eu mabwysiadu, bydd y darpariaethau 
hyn yn galluogi awdurdodau lleol i wrthod cais ar sail ehangach na'r rhai 
a ganiateir o dan Ddeddf Trwyddedu 2003, gan roi mwy o lais i bobl leol 
dros reoleiddio clybiau glin-ddawnsio  lleoliadau tebyg yn eu hardal. 
 
Mae adran 27 yn nodi ystyr "lleoliad adloniant rhywiol" fel "unrhyw safle 
lle darperir adloniant perthnasol o flaen cynulleidfa fyw ar gyfer elw 
ariannol y trefnydd neu'r diddanwr". Caiff "adloniant perthnasol" ei 
ddiffinio fel "unrhyw berfformiad byw neu arddangosfa fyw o noethni y 
mae’n rhaid cymryd yn ganiataol, gan anwybyddu elw ariannol, ei fod yn 
cael ei ddarparu’n unig er mwyn ysgogi unrhyw aelod o'r gynulleidfa yn 
rhywiol (p'un ai yn llafar neu fel arall)”. 
 
Er y dylid cymryd pob cais yn ôl ei deilyngdod ei hun, byddai’r diffiniad o 
adloniant perthnasol yn debygol o gyfeirio at y mathau o adloniant 
canlynol: 
 

 Glin-ddawnsio  

Tudalen 94



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5. 
 
5.1 
 
 
6. 
 
6.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8. 
 
8.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Dawnsio Polyn 

 Dawnsio ar Fwrdd  

 Sioeau Stripio  

 Sioeau Sbecian 

 Sioeau Rhyw Byw 
 
 
YMGYNGHORI 
 
Os bydd Aelodau o blaid mabwysiadu darpariaethau adran 27, bydd 
angen ymgymryd ag ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus cyn ei weithredu. 
 
GOBLYGIADAU COST 
 
Os bydd y diwygiadau a wnaed gan adran 27 o Ddeddf Plismona a 
Throsedd yn cael eu mabwysiadu, bydd angen trwyddedu safleoedd lle 
mae gweithgareddau trwyddedadwy fel y diffinnir gan Ddeddf Trwyddedu 
2003 yn digwydd o dan y Ddeddf honno o hyd.   Mae hyn yn golygu y 
bydd y mwyafrif helaeth o glybiau glin-ddawnsio neu leoliadau tebyg yn 
gofyn am drwydded lleoliad adloniant rhywiol a Thrwydded Safle. 
 
 
GOBLYGIADAU AR FEYSYDD POLISI ERAILL 
 
Mae Adran 17 o Ddeddf Trosedd ac Anrhefn yn rhoi dyletswydd ar 
awdurdodau lleol i ystyried materion trosedd ac anrhefn wrth wneud 
penderfyniadau yn ymwneud â thrwyddedu.   Wrth ystyried y mater hwn, 
bydd yr Aelodau’n dymuno ystyried yr holl ffactorau perthnasol, gan 
gynnwys goblygiadau yn ymwneud â’r posibilrwydd y bydd y 
penderfyniad yn effeithio ar faterion trosedd ac anrhefn yn yr ardal.  
 
YSTYRIAETH 
 
Efallai y bydd yr Aelodau'n ystyried y pwyntiau canlynol wrth benderfynu:  
 

 Er nad oes unrhyw broblem gyda'r math hwn o safle yn Sir 
Ddinbych ar hyn o bryd, gall Aelodau ystyried mabwysiadu’r 
pwerau hyn fel mesur ataliol ar gyfer unrhyw safle yn y dyfodol. 

 Os bydd Aelodau yn dewis peidio â mabwysiadu’r pwerau hyn, 
mae'n rhaid i'r Cyngor barhau i ddibynnu'n llwyr ar Ddeddf 
Trwyddedu 2003 i reoli safleoedd o'r fath 

 Mae'r Ddeddf Trwyddedu ond yn caniatáu sylwadau i gael eu 
gwneud sy'n ymwneud ag un neu fwy o'r amcanion trwyddedu, 
sef: 

 

Tudalen 95



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9. 
 
9.1 
 
 
 
 
9.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
o atal trosedd ac anhrefn 
o diogelwch y cyhoedd 
o atal niwsans cyhoeddus 
o amddiffyn plant rhag niwed 

 
                  
ARGYMHELLIAD   
 
 
Ar ôl ystyried cynnwys yr adroddiad hwn, gall aelodau benderfynu gofyn i 
swyddogion lunio Polisi Sefydliad Rhyw diwygiedig drafft sy'n addas at y 
diben, i'w gyflwyno iddynt mewn cyfarfod yn y dyfodol, cyn cynnal 
ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus. 
 
Bod yr Aelodau'n ystyried mabwysiadu'r darpariaethau yn adran 27 o 
Ddeddf Plismona a Throsedd 2009, darpariaethau o'r fath i gael eu 
hymgorffori o fewn y Polisi Sefydliad Rhyw diwygiedig drafft.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Tudalen 96



ADRODDIAD I'R: Pwyllgor Trwyddedu 

DYDDIAD: 7 Rhagfyr 2016 
 

SWYDDOG ARWEINIOL: Pennaeth Cynllunio a Gwarchod y 
Cyhoedd  

SWYDDOG CYSWLLT: Rheolwr Busnes Gwarchod y Cyhoedd  
trwyddedu@sirddinbych.gov.uk  

01824 706066 
PWNC: Rhaglen Gwaith i’r Dyfodol 2017 

 
 

1. PWRPAS YR ADRODDIAD 

1.2 Darparu Aelodau â Rhaglen Gwaith i'r Dyfodol arfaethedig ar gyfer 2017.  
 

2. 
 
2.1 
 
 
 

CRYNODEB GWEITHREDOL 
 
Mae Rhaglen Gwaith i'r Dyfodol arfaethedig ynghlwm, yn Atodiad 1, i'r 
Aelodau ei hystyried a’i chymeradwyo.  

3. 
 
3.1 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
 
3.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.4 
 
 

GWYBODAETH GEFNDIROL 
 
Bydd yr Aelodau'n ymwybodol iddynt gymeradwyo Rhaglen Gwaith i’r 
Dyfodol 18 mis o hyd yn un o gyfarfodydd blaenorol y Pwyllgor 
Trwyddedu. 
 
Wrth ddrafftio’r Rhaglen Gwaith i'r Dyfodol, mae Swyddogion wedi 
ystyried y polisïau perthnasol i’r pwyllgor Trwyddedu a'r dyddiau adolygu 
ar gyfer y polisïau hynny ynghyd ag unrhyw newidiadau deddfwriaethol 
posib y cynigir gan lywodraeth ganolog. 
 
Os yw Aelodau o blaid cymeradwyo'r Rhaglen Gwaith i’r Dyfodol 12 mis 
yma, yna bydd Swyddogion yn diweddaru Aelodau ym mhob cyfarfod 
pwyllgor â diweddariad o’r Rhaglen Gwaith i’r Dyfodol a chynnal Rhaglen 
Gwaith i’r Dyfodol ar dreigl am 12 mis. Cynigwyd y bydd y fformat hwn yn 
galluogi Swyddogion i ymateb i bwysau sy’n ymddangos neu newidiadau 
fel maent yn codi heb orfod gwneud newidiadau sylweddol i’r rhaglen.  
 
Dylai Aelodau nodi nad yw'r Rhaglen Gwaith i'r Dyfodol hon yn cynnwys 
eitemau a fuasent fel arfer yn cael eu hychwanegu at raglen y Pwyllgor 
Trwyddedu ar sail ad hoc, er enghraifft gwrandawiadau gyrwr tacsi.  
ARGYMHELLIAD 

Tudalen 97

Eitem Agenda 9



4. 
 
4.1 
 
 
4.2 

 
I Aelodau gymeradwyo'r Rhaglen Gwaith i'r Dyfodol arfaethedig, fel y 
manylwyd yn yr Atodiad. 
 
I aelodau awdurdodi Swyddogion i gyflwyno Rhaglen Gwaith i'r Dyfodol 
ar dreigl 12 mis i'w diweddaru ym mhob cyfarfod Pwyllgor. 

  

 

Tudalen 98



Atodiad A 

 

Pwyllgor Trwyddedu 

Rhaglen Waith 

 

Dyddiad y Pwyllgor Adroddiad Sylwadau 

Mawrth 2017 Datganiad Polisi Trwyddedu 
 

Cymeradwyaeth 

Mehefin 2017 Datganiad Egwyddorion (Gamblo) 
 

Drafft cyntaf ar gyfer 
ymgynghori  

Sefydliad Rhyw 
 

Drafft cyntaf ar gyfer 
ymgynghori  

Masnachu Stryd 
 

Cymeradwyaeth 

Medi 2017  Polisi Euogfarn Gyrrwr Cerbydau 
Hacni a Cherbydau Hurio Preifat  
 

Drafft cyntaf ar gyfer 
ymgynghori  

Polisi/Amodau Gyrrwr/ 
Gweithredwr Cerbydau Hacni a 
Cherbydau Hurio Preifat. 
 

Drafft cyntaf ar gyfer 
ymgynghori  

Rhagfyr 2017 Datganiad Egwyddorion (Gamblo) 
 

Cymeradwyaeth 

Sefydliad Rhyw 
 

Cymeradwyaeth 

 

Tudalen 99



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 101

Eitem Agenda 10
Yn rhinwedd Paragraff(au) 12, 14 Rhan 4, Atodlen 12A
Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 103

Yn rhinwedd Paragraff(au) 12, 14 Rhan 4, Atodlen 12A
Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 107

Yn rhinwedd Paragraff(au) 12, 14 Rhan 4, Atodlen 12A
Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 109

Yn rhinwedd Paragraff(au) 12, 14 Rhan 4, Atodlen 12A
Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag


	Rhaglen
	 RHAN 1 – GWAHODDIR Y WASG A'R CYHOEDD I FOD YN BRESENNOL AR GYFER Y RHAN HON O’R CYFARFOD
	2 DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT
	4 COFNODION Y CYFARFOD DIWETHAF
	5 POLISI ARFAETHEDIG CERBYDAU HACNI A CHERBYDAU HURIO PREIFAT
	PROPOSED HC AND PHV POLICY - APP 1
	PROPOSED HC AND PHV POLICY - APP 1a
	PROPOSED HC AND PHV POLICY - APP 1b
	PROPOSED HC AND PHV POLICY - APP 1c
	PROPOSED HC AND PHV POLICY - APP 1d
	PROPOSED HC AND PHV POLICY - APP 1e
	PROPOSED HC AND PHV POLICY - APP 2

	6 DIWEDDARIAD AR Y WEITHDREFN PWYNTIAU COSB
	UPDATE OF PENALTY POINTS PROCEUDRE - APP A

	7 ADOLYGU'R POLISI MASNACHU AR Y STRYD
	REVIEW OF STREET TRADING POLICY - APP

	8 ADOLYGU'R POLISI SEFYDLIAD RHYW
	SEX ESTABLISHMENT POLICY - APP A E

	9 RHAGLEN GWAITH I'R DYFODOL Y PWYLLGOR TRWYDDEDU 2017
	LICENSING FWP - APP

	10 CAIS AM DRWYDDED AR GYFER CERBYD HURIO PREIFAT
	PHV LICENCE - APP 1
	PHV LICENCE - APP 1a
	PHV LICENCE - APP 2


